
 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leicestershire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Health and Wellbeing Board  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Thursday, 28 November 2019 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Guthlaxton Committee Room, County Hall, Glenfield 

Contact: Mr. Matthew Hand (Tel: 0116 305 2583) 

Email: matthew.hand@leics.gov.uk 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. L. Breckon JP CC (Chairman) 

 
Mr. R. Blunt CC 

Sue Elcock 
Karen English 

Cllr. J. Kaufman 
Cllr. P. King 

Harsha Kotecha 
Dr Mayur Lakhani 

DPCC Kirk Master 
Jane Moore 

Mr. I. D. Ould OBE CC 
 

Mike Sandys 
Frances Shattock 
John Sinnott 
Micheal Smith 
Ch. Supt Adam Streets 
Jane Toman 
Caroline Trevithick 
Mark Wightman 
Jon Wilson 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 
2019 and Action Log.  
 

 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

2.  
  

To advise of any other items which the 
Chairman has decided to take as urgent 
elsewhere on the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

4.  
  

Position Statement by the Chairman.  
 

 
 

 

  
 
 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works


 
 
 
 

Strategy 
 

 Health and Care in the Place. 
 

5.  
  

Primary Care Network Development in 
Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.  
 

West 
Leicestershire and 
East Leicestershire 
and Rutland CCG 
 

(Pages 13 - 26) 

6.  
  

Integrated Neighbourhood Teams  
 

West 
Leicestershire and 
East Leicestershire 
and Rutland CCG 
 

(Pages 27 - 40) 

7.  
  

Social Prescribing Link Workers and Care - 
Coordination Funding Update.  
 

Director of Public 
Health 
 

(Pages 41 - 48) 

8.  
  

Workforce Workstream for the Sustainability 
and Transformation Plans - Challenges at a 
System Level.  
 

West 
Leicestershire and 
East Leicestershire 
and Rutland CCG 
 

(Pages 49 - 70) 

9.  
  

Adverse Childhood Experiences.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 71 - 74) 

 Housing in the Place. 
 

10.  
  

Update on the Work of the Leicestershire 
Housing Services Partnership.  
 

Housing Services 
Partnership 
 

(Pages 75 - 78) 

 Prevention in the Place. 
 

11.  
  

The Violence Reduction Network and 
Prevention Board.  
 

Police and Crime 
Commissioner 
 

(Pages 79 - 98) 

12.  
  

Unified Prevention Board Update  
 

Unified Prevention 
Board 
 

(Pages 99 - 
102) 

 Performance: Placed Based Outcomes. 
 

13.  
  

Leicestershire Children and Families 
Partnership Plan 2018 - 2021: Progress 
Update.  
 

Director of 
Children and 
Family Services 
 

(Pages 103 - 
110) 

14.  
  

Annual Report of the Director of Public Health: 
Leicestershire's Health - Physical Activity - 
Moving to a Whole System Approach.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Director of Public 
Health 
 

(Pages 111 - 
146) 



 
 
 
 

 
15.  

  
Date of next meeting.  
 

 
 

 

 The next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board will be held on 23 January 
2020 at 2.00pm. 

 
 

 

16.  
  

Any other items which the Chairman has 
decided to take as urgent.  
 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held at County Hall, Glenfield on 
Thursday, 26 September 2019.  
 

PRESENT 
 
 
Leicestershire County Council 
 
Mr. L. Breckon JP CC (in the Chair)            Mike Sandys 
Mr R. Blunt CC                                            John Sinnott 
Mr. I. D. Ould CC                                         Peter Davis                     
Mrs. C. M. Radford CC 
 
 
Clinical Commissioning Groups 
 
Dr Mayur Lakhani 
Paul Gibara  
 
Leicestershire District and Borough Councils 
 
Cllr. J. Kaufman 
Cllr. P. King  
Jane Toman 
 
Healthwatch 
 
Harsha Kotecha 
 
In attendance 
 
Mark Wightman                             University Hospital of Leicester 
Simon Down                                  Office of the Police and Crime Commission     
Helen Thompson                           Leicestershire Partnership Trust 
 

 
Apologies 
 
Karen English, DPCC Kirk Master, Jane Moore, Micheal Smith, Caroline Trevithick, 
Rachel Bilsborough and Jon Wilson 
 

178. Minutes of the previous meeting.  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2019 were taken as read, confirmed and 
signed subject to Mrs C. M. Radford CC’s apologies being noted.  
 

179. Urgent items.  
 
There were no urgent items for consideration. 
 

5 Agenda Item 1



 
 

 

180. Declarations of interest.  
 
The Chairman invited members who wished to do so to declare any interest in respect of 
items on the agenda for the meeting. 
 
Cllr. P. King declared a personal interest in regard to the substantive items on the agenda 
as a Trustee and Vice Chairman of the Carers Centre, Leicestershire and Rutland.  
 

181. Position Statement by the Chairman.  
 
The Chairman presented a position statement on the following matters:- 
 

 Suicide Prevention Campaign 

 Violence Reduction Network 

 5 Ways to Wellbeing – Mental Health Self Care Campaign Update 

 Preparation for Stoptober 

 Professor Cheryl Davenport  
 
A copy of the position statement is filed with these minutes. 
 

182. Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Independent Chairman of the Leicestershire and 
Rutland Local Safeguarding Adult Board which presented the Boards’ draft Annual 
Report for 2018/19.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda item 5’, is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
The Director of Adults and Communities, who presented the report on behalf of the 
Independent Chairman, said that the Annual Report identified the importance of 
partnership working to keep adults who were at risk of neglect and abuse, safe. As part of 
this a new approach to prevention of safeguarding need through links with community 
safety Joint Action Groups in Rutland had been undertaken. 
 
It was recognised that the 2018/19 Annual Report lacked detail of the Safeguarding 
Board’s approach to helping the homeless/ rough sleepers and this would be explored in 
future through the Board’s working groups.    
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report for 
2018/19 be noted. 
 
 

183. Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Childrens Board Annual Report.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Independent Chairman of the Leicestershire and 
Rutland Local Safeguarding Children Board (LRLSCB) which presented the Boards’ draft 
Annual Report for 2018/19.  A copy of the report, marked ‘Agenda item 6’, is filed with 
these minutes. 
 
It was noted that the LRLSCB would cease on 25 September 2019 and would be 
replaced by multi-agency safeguarding arrangements which would be managed through 
the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Partnership. Operationally, it was 

6



 
 

 

the intention that there would be little difference to what was currently in place; the most 
significant change would see equal and joint responsibility shared between the statutory 
partners. 
 
In reference to the risks to young people as a result of their families not being able to 
access quality housing provision, it was noted that the Board had worked alongside 
District Councils and commissioners of safeguarding arrangements to manage housing 
issues.  
 
It was noted that Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACE) continued to be a significant 
issue in Leicestershire. Whilst awareness of ACEs had risen, particularly amongst GPs, it 
remained difficult to measure the cumulative effect and overall impact on health services. 
The matter was discussed at a recent safeguarding conference and it was considered 
beneficial for the Health and Wellbeing Board to receive a report detailing the agreed 
outcomes.   
 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the Leicestershire and Rutland Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 

for 2018/19 be noted; 
 

b) That a report concerning the outputs and recommendations arising from the 
workshop on Adverse Childhood Experiences hosted by the Children and Families 
Partnership Board in September be considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board 
at its meeting in November.  
 

 
184. Developing a New Place- Based Health and Wellbeing Outcomes Framework for 

Leicestershire.  
 
The Board considered a report by the Director of Health and Care Integration which 
sought feedback on a draft version of a new place-based dashboard which was intended 
to provide an overview of outcomes and service delivery within the place tier of 
Leicestershire. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda Item 7’ is filed with these minutes.  
 
Arising from discussion the following points were noted; 
 

 Modifications would be made to the dashboard in order for it to show whether the 
data fields were reporting residential populations or registered GP populations. 
This would enable a distinction to be made to recognise those residents living in 
Leicestershire but who may be registered with GP practices outside of the County. 
The use of other neighbouring CCG health information to capture similar data for 
those using health services outside of the County would also be explored.  
 

 The draft dashboard predominately focused on health indicators and there was 
scope to include other social determinants such as education, employment, 
poverty and housing which all impacted heath outcomes.  
 

 The element of the dashboard relating to the support received by patients in 
community facilities highlighted ongoing issues concerning access to Children’s 
and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS). Whilst it was understood 
improvements were being made to the time young people were having to wait to 
access CAMHS services and changes were being made to the way in which 

7



 
 

 

services were commissioned, it was acknowledged that the issue required ongoing 
review by the Board.     
 

 It was recognised that due to many of the data sets used to populate the 
dashboard being new and using recent data, it would benefit from several more 
quarters of data in order for a more accurate assessment to be presented. The 
Health and Wellbeing Board would consider the dashboard on a quarterly basis.  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the feedback on the progress to date on the development of a new place-

based dashboard be noted; 
 
b) That it be noted: 

 
I. That the Leicestershire Integration Executive will oversee further 

developments of this dashboard, on behalf of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, working with respective subgroups of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and of the Integration Executive. 
 

II. That the Integration Executive will receive the dashboard bi-monthly 
meetings, the Integration Delivery Group and Joint Commissioning Forum 
will receive the dashboard monthly, and the Health and Wellbeing Board to 
receive it quarterly.  

 
III. That the Leicestershire Integration Executive will ensure coordination with 

those officers developing the LLR-wide and Neighbourhood level 
dashboards, to ensure consistency for those metrics that require reporting 
at all 3 levels, also to avoid unnecessary duplication and to agree the 
tier(s) of reporting required for specific metrics 

 
IV. That there will be a report at a future meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board about the developing of Primary Care Networks dashboards. 
 

c) That the Director of Health and Care Integration arrange for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board and other multi agency representatives to jointly consider the 
overall provision, effectiveness and outcomes of services supporting the mental 
health of children and young people in Leicestershire. 
 

 
185. Housing Developments across Leicestershire over the next 10 years.  

 
The Board considered a report of the Joint Strategic Planning Manager for Leicester and 
Leicestershire which provided an overview of recent housing completions and the 
number of houses planned in the future, along with information concerning current 
engagement with health partners in relation to the provision of future housing. A copy of 
the report marked ‘Agenda Item 8’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
Arising from discussion the following points were noted: 
 

 In addition to the creation of individual local plans, local planning authorities, the 
County Council (as the highway authority) the City Council and the Leicester and 
Leicestershire Enterprise Partnership had combined to produce the Strategic 

8



 
 

 

Growth Plan (SGP) which set out a strategy for the development of Leicester and 
Leicestershire for the period up to 2050.  
 

 As set out in the SGP, the future development of Leicester and Leicestershire 
would be based on the ambition of ensuring developments were accompanied with 
the necessary infrastructure. The Plan also expressed the intention to shift the 
focus of development  from small and medium sized sites which put considerable 
pressure on existing health and educational resources and focused instead on the 
ambition to develop in major strategic locations which benefited from transport 
corridors, were close to employment centres and could benefit from other 
community infrastructure/active design elements.  
 

 The ability to access and then spend allocated Section 106 contributions was vital. 
It required partners, including healthcare providers to engage with planning 
officers at an early stage in order for their requirements to be considered.  
 

 Work to address the rising numbers of Homelessness within the County was 
ongoing. Partners had benefited from access to Step Down funding but progress 
was slow. The availability of housing for those who were unable to afford their own 
homes was important, not only for the individuals concerned, but also for health 
services which would avoid additional costs often associated with admissions to 
statutory health services relating to homelessness. Engagement with developers 
to help them understand what provision was required for those in need of 
affordable accommodation and where best for it to be located, was ongoing.  
 

RESOLVED: 
 
a) That the information provided concerning the recent housing completions and the 

number of houses planned in Leicester and Leicestershire be noted; 
 

b) That the County Council advise how best representatives of the County’s Clinical 
Commissioning Groups and NHS Trusts could liaise with the local planning 
authorities to discuss a more systematic approach to the management of Section 
106 contributions.  

 
186. Active Design in New County Housing Developments.  

 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided the Board 
with an update concerning the incorporation of active design principles into new housing 
developments in Leicestershire. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 9’ is filed with 
these minutes.  
 
It was noted that there was provision in many of the planning authorities’ local growth 
plans to consider active design when developing plans for new housing. Developments 
had to be in line with national planning design codes. 
 
In reference to the types of housing being built in new developments, specifically for older 
people, there were national standards aligned to the development of life long and 
sustainable homes and it was important for relevant partners to stress the importance of 
such a provision.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 

9



 
 

 

That the Council’s approach to help create healthy communities be welcomed and 
supported. 
 
 

187. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Multimorbidity and Frailty.  
 
The Board considered a report and presentation of the Director of Public Health 
concerning the findings and recommendations arising from the Joint Strategy Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) Multimorbidity and Frailty Chapter. A copy of both documents is filed 
with these minutes.  
 
The Director reported that the JSNA chapter had identified a trend by which 
multimorbidity ( where an individual suffered from two or more chronic medical 
conditions) caused greater emergency admission costs compared to those based on age.  
 
Members agreed that it was important for the recommendations arising from the chapter 
to be shared with Primary Care Networks and partners be encouraged to work together 
at a place level.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the recommendations of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment  - Multi Morbidity 
and Frailty be welcomed and supported. 
 

188. Mental Health Standards and Local Investment Plans from 2019/20 Onwards.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (CCG) which detailed their investments into mental health 
services in 2019/20. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 11’ is filed with these 
minutes. 
 
It was noted that the CCGs were in the process of developing a five year Commissioning 
Plan which would identify the intended spend from April 2020. The Plan would include 
provision for an increase in spend on Mental Health Services. The Health and Wellbeing 
Board would consider a report at a future meeting concerning how the extra spend would 
be allocated and the expected benefits arising from the increase.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That a further report on the expected impact of the planned increased investments in 
Mental Health be considered by the Health and Wellbeing Board at a future meeting.  
 

189. Better Care Fund Plan 2019/20.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which 
sought approval for the Leicestershire Better Care Fund Plan for 2019/20 to be submitted 
to NHS England. A copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 12’ is filed with these 
minutes.  
 
Members welcomed the Plan and noted the extensive work and thorough engagement 
which had been undertaken to prepare the Plan for submission.   
 
RESOLVED: 

10



 
 

 

 
That the Better Care Fund Plan for 2019/20 be approved for submission to NHS England. 
 

190. Health and Wellbeing Board Governance Arrangements and Sub Structure.  
 
The Board considered a report of the Director of Health and Care Integration which 
provided an update on revisions to the structure of sub groups in support of the Board. A 
copy of the report marked ‘Agenda item 13’ is filed with these minutes. 
 
In reference to the links between district councils and health partners, it was noted that 
whilst further development of links at a place level would be beneficial, collaboration at a 
neighbourhood level was on going and the relevant parties were represented on the 
Health and Wellbeing Board.    
 
RESOLVED: 

 
a) That the changes to the sub structure and governance arrangements being 

undertaken during 2019/20 be approved. 
 

b) That the Director of Health and Care Integration be requested to carry out a further 
review of place based governance in 2020, once:  

 
I. the new CCG Accountable Officer is in post and the CCG is reconfigured; 

 
II. There is further clarity about the governance arrangements at the system, 

place and neighbourhood tiers within the emerging LLR Integrated Care 
System; 

 
III. The BCF policy framework for 2020 onwards is communicated and other 

related policy matters linked to the work of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
are clearer (e.g. the medium term policy and funding position for adult social 
care). 

 
 

191. Date of next meeting.  
 
It was noted that the next meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board would be held on 
Thursday 28 November 2019. 
  
 

     2.00 - 4.10 pm CHAIRMAN 
     26 September 2019 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No. Date Action Responsible 

Officer

Comments Status

367(c) 16/03/17 Request the Unified Prevention Board  to take 

forward Leicestershire specific work actions from 

the LLR Suicide Prevention Strategy and Action 

Plan and report back to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board when appropriate.

Mike Sandys Six monthly updates from the Unified Prevention 

Board are scheduled for the Health and Wellbeing 

Board.

GREEN

75(b) 24/05/18 That the Health and Wellbeing Board receives a 

report outlining the work undertaken in localities 

to support people with dementia.

Jane Toman A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

119 © 29/11/18
That the Health and Wellbeing Board receive a 

report on the development of locality profiles, 

specifically how these have supported Integrated 

Locality Teams to target interventions more 

effectively to the needs of local populations.

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

122 29/11/18 That the outcome of the review of joint funded 

packages be reported to a future meeting of the 

Board.

East Leics CCG A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

166 11/07/19
That a further update on the implementation of 

Primary Care Networks across Leicester, 

Leicestershire and Rutland be considered at a 

future meeting of the Board. 

East Leics CCG A report will be provided to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board in November

GREEN

168b 11/07/19 That an Air Quality and Health multi-agency 

action plan based on the recommendations in 

the JSNA be produced and considered at a 

future meeting of the Board.

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

170c 11/07/19 That the Board consider a further update on the 

progress of the Health and Social Care Sector 

Growth Plan in 12 months time

Jon Willson A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

172 11/07/19 That a further update on the Leicestershire 

Social Prescribing Model be considered at a 

future meeting of the Board. 

Mike Sandys A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

1

13



Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log

No. Date Action Responsible 

Officer

Comments Status

174 11/07/19 That a report detailing the work of the Violence 

Reduction Unit be considered at a future 

meeting of the Board.

Jane 

Moore/Simon 

Down

A report will be provided to a future meeting of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

GREEN

184 26/09/19
That the Director of Health and Care Integration 

arrange for the Health and Wellbeing Board and 

other multi agency representatives to jointly 

consider the overall provision, effectiveness and 

outcomes of services supporting the mental 

health of children and young people in 

Leicestershire

Cheryl Davenport The matter will be considered during the Health and 

Wellbeing Board meeting in Janaury

GREEN

188 26/09/19
That a further report on the expected impact of 

the planned increased investments in Mental 

Health be considered by the Health and 

Wellbeing Board at a future meeting.

CCGs A report will be considered during the Health and 

Wellbeing Board meeting in Janaury

GREEN

2

14



Primary Care Network 
Development in LLR

Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing 
Board

28th November 2019

15
A

genda Item
 5



The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Integrated Care System

16



PCN

Primary Care 
Resilience

Prevention

Community 
Services

Social Care

Planned Care

Diagnostics

Communities 
and People 

Population 
Health 

Management

17



18



The 2019/20 ‘To Do List’ for PCNs

• Agree form

• Formal PCN agreement 

• Appoint an ACD

• Begin to appoint to new roles

• Understand what 

development the PCN needs

• Develop a plan based on 

maturity matrix 

• Get ready for 2020/21 and 

beyond 

19



5 Year Expectations of PCNs

Ability to 
focus on 

Population 
Health 

Management

Ability to 
integrate 

care

Ability to 
manage 

resources

Ability to 
work with 

their 
communities

Maturity of 
their 

leadership 
and 

partnerships

Capability 

for proactive 

population 

health 

analysis and 

improvement

MDT working 

across all 

partners within 

the PCN 

supported by 

IT 

interoperability

Capability to 

understand 

requirements 

and to manage 

resource flows 

across the 

PCN

Community 

and Voluntary 

sector voices 

are embedded 

into PCN 

planning and 

decision 

making

Access to the 

right 

information 

and ability to 

be part of 

decision 

making at the 

right level 

20



The Network Service Specifications 
First five for 2020/21

• Structured Medications Review 

• Optimisation Enhanced Health 

in Care Homes

• Anticipatory Care requirements 

for high need patients

• Personalised Care

• Supporting Early Cancer 

Diagnosis

Additional for 2021/22

• CVD Prevention and Diagnosis

• Tackling Neighbourhood 

Inequalities (population health)

Seven specifications:

• A real change to traditional 

DES

• There is no payment for 

delivery of specifications 

• Failure to deliver the 

specifications negates 

entitlement to the PCN DES

• Expectation is that new 

roles creates the new 

capacity to deliver the 

specifications 

21



The New Roles Scheme 
New roles for 2019/20

• Social prescriber 

• Clinical Pharmacist 

Coming soon (2020/21+)

• Physiotherapist

• Physician Associate

• Community 

Paramedics

An opportunity to:

• Create new roles 

• Reduce pressure on 

GPs

• Continue to transform 

and improve access for 

patients 

• Develop the 

practice/PCN multi-

disciplinary team

• Work together as a 

PCN

22



Financial Implications for PCNs – New Roles
For a 50,000 patient PCN:

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Clinical Pharmacist  FTE 1 2 3 3 3

Social Prescriber  FTE 1 2 3 3 3

Physiotherapist  FTE 1 1 2 3

Physician Associate  FTE 1 1 1 2

Community Paramedic  FTE 1 1 2

2 6 9 10 13

CLINICAL ROLE

Total Headcount 

2019/20 

(from July)   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

National Funding £110 m £257 m  £415 m £634 m £891 m

LLR Population 1,144,575 1,145,720 1,146,865 1,148,012 1,149,160

Funding per 50k typical 

network (paid per 

weighted list of a PCN) 92,000.00£   £213,000 £342, 000 £519,000 £726,000

TOTAL Funding 

Available

 in LLR 2,106,018£   4,880,765£  7,844,556£    11,916,366£ 16,685,806£ 

23



PCNs’ readiness to deliver

• This is a big ‘ask’ – PCNs need support to be ready to 

deliver 

• New tool to help PCNs self-assess their ‘readiness’

• The Maturity Matrix – asks PCNs to understand 

Their ability to 
focus on 

Population 
Health 

Management

Their ability to 
integrated 

care

Their ability to 
manage 

resources

Their ability to 
work with 

their 
communities

Their maturity 
of their 

leadership 
and 

partnerships

In understanding the gap, PCNs and ACDs are able to access 

the right support and development opportunities

24



Plan to support PCNs?

• Additional funding

• Offer of support

• Development Plan 

• Practical support 

• PCN / Practice 

Organisational              

Development & 

Leadership 

25



Additional Support in Kind 

• CCG management 
support

• Interpretation of National 
Guidance

• NHSE reporting

• Governance and process 
development  

• Policy and documentation 
standardisation 

• Business intelligence 
(e.g. Aristotle, ACG, 

& Population Health 
Management

26



Workforce

• Cross System 
planning

• Workforce career 
pathways e.g. 
Paramedics 
/Pharmacists

• Recruitment support 

• Sourcing job 
descriptions and 
personal 
specifications 

27



Communications and Engagement 

• Expertise and advice 

• Arranging and planning 

events

• Strengthening 

relationships with PPGs 

and communities

• Messaging support

• Communication tools

• Support in 
implementation

28



Integrated Neighbourhood 
Teams 

Leicestershire HWB 
November 2019

29
A

genda Item
 6



Presentation content:

• National and local vision for integrated teams

• Progress towards delivery

• Leicestershire teams model – what, how and when

• Next steps for development plan

30



NHS Long Term Plan – Integrated Community Care

• ‘With primary care networks as their cornerstone, bring together 

community, social, secondary care, mental health, voluntary and 

wider services to provide proactive and integrated care to local 

communities which keeps people well and out of hospital.’

• ‘New investment will fund expanded community multidisciplinary 

teams aligned with new primary care networks based on 

neighbouring GP practices’

• ‘The result will be the creation – for the first time since the NHS was 

set up in 1948 – of fully integrated community-based health care.’

31



The Integrated Team

Core Team consisting of;
• GP and practice team
• Community Matron
• Senior Nurse Complex Needs
• Adult Social  Care 
• Therapy Lead
• Local Area Coordinator
• Care Coordinator

Care-co-ordinator links with other care 
professionals depending on patient 
need

32



Neighbourhood Teams – what do they do?

Multi-
disciplinary 

Team working

(MDT)

Population 
Health 

Management 
Approach

Co-ordinated 
care

Preventative 
approach 

including social 
prescribing, 
anticipatory 

care

33



The LLR Vision for Integrated Teams

We will develop health and social care teams, supported by 

specialists and the voluntary and community sector, 

clustered around groups of  general practices within 

identified placed based communities.

The teams aim to improve health outcomes and wellbeing, 

increase our citizens’, clinician and staff satisfaction and at 

the same time moderate the cost of delivering that care.

34



Progress towards implementation

• Integrated Locality Teams have been in place in LLR since 2018, 

meeting regularly

• Community Services Redesign aligns community health teams 

around primary care networks at neighbourhood level

• Supported and evaluated three Early Implementers of integrated 

neighbourhood MDTs

• Teams are receiving risk stratification data to support a population 

health management approach

• Care co-ordination in place in each CCG, different models

• PCNs recruiting social prescribing staff to support prevention offer

35



36



9

37



EXPERT*

ENHANCED*

ESSENTIAL*

Patient Group: Most complex, top 5% of pop 
Patient Selection: MDT referral, hospital referral 
Approach: MDT across PCN
MDT level – PCN MDT meeting, multi-organisational 
interventions 
Offer: Risk strat tool, Personalised needs assessment, 
1:1 support, ongoing case management and complex 
care coordination, post discharge follow up,  support 
for carers/family 
Outcome: Integrated Care Reduced unplanned service 
use. Better supported carers

Patient Group: Stable complex / high risk, top 30% of 
pop
Patient Selection: Ref from PCN clinician, local 
intelligence, LPT/ASC frontline staff
Approach – PCN Social Prescribing offer
MDT level – Practice MDT meeting, disciplinary 
interventions 
Offer –Social prescription assessment, active sign-
posting, referral to appropriate prevention and 
targeted services
Outcome: Better informed patients & carers, able to 
live well with their LTCs. Improved community 
resilience 

Patient Group: Whole population 
Patient Selection – Opportunistic
Approach – Practice level, trained sign-posting offer 
Offer – Verbal advice and guidance, sign-posting to LA 
prevention offer (e.g. First Contact Plus), self care/self-
referral preferred method of access 
Outcome: People are supported to stay well. 
Improved community resilience. People make 
informed choices when health changes

People                               
with 

complex                       
needs                             

(GPLWs East/ 
Care Co-ord West

People with Long Term 
Physical and Mental Health 

Conditions 

Social Prescribing 
Link Worker

Whole Population 

Sign-posting

*HEE Care Navigation Competency framework

Trusted-assessor 
referral/flow 
between levels 
of care 
coordination 

Appropriate 
flow between 
levels of care 
coordination 

38



Case Study: Reducing Readmissions

Care co-ordinator contacting patients after 
discharge

Outcomes: People are supported to live as 
independently as possible at home and to 
return home quickly and safely, after a 
hospital admission

• 84% of patients contacted within 48hrs 
after discharge

• A 10% reduction in readmissions within 
30 days of discharge

• Reduced GP contacts for patients on 
Care Coordinators caseload

• Increased referrals into non clinical 
services (LACs, First Contact Plus, local 
befriending services

39



Co-ordinated care – Good news for people, 
families and their carers

“It was very helpful that we 

received a phone call after my 

Mother was discharged from 

hospital, which gave us a 

contact for any further help we 

needed” –Family Member

“I was worried about a blood 

test booked at Rosebery. I did 

not feel well enough to go on 

my own and it would have 

meant a taxi both ways. 

Eventually a nurse came to 

my bungalow instead. Thank 

you” –B. 90yrs

“Help received when Sharon rang was fantastic from contacting Social Services for my Dad, to 

ringing the ward and supporting my Mum and was still in touch several weeks later. I even spoke 

with Sharon late in the evening for advice; nothing was too much trouble for her. This service is 

brilliant.” –Family Member

40



41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Social Prescribing 
link Workers and 
care-coordination 

funding update
Mike Sandys

November 2019

43
A

genda Item
 7



Key updates for HWBB

• PCNs – Social Prescribing Link Workers

• PCNs – New service specifications 

• Care Coordination – Good news 44



PCNs/Social Prescribing 

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/01/social-
prescribing-community-based-
support-summary-guide.pdf

Page 11 – Model for SP
Page 18 – Draft Job Description

45

https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/social-prescribing-community-based-support-summary-guide.pdf


West Leicestershire

• 48 applicants for 9 SPLW roles

• Closed on 6 October 2019

• Shortlisting completed & interviews scheduled 
for w/c 25 November 2019

• Interview panel: Federation rep, Public Health 
rep & Patient rep

• Still finalising arrangements for a joint funded 
Team Leader role with Public Health 

46



East Leics & Rutland

• North Blaby have 1.4 wte SPLW employed by Blaby DC (also 
involved in a SP Pilot with Blaby DC for complex/high 
intensity users) Oct start

• SB&L have 1wte SPLW employed by Blaby DC (also involved 
in a SP Pilot with Blaby DC for complex/high Intensity 
users) Mid Nov start

• Cross Counties – 1wte - Oct Start
• Oadby & Wigston – 1wte – Oct Start
• Rutland – 1wte with Rutland CC – Out to advert
• MSV – 1 wte - interviewed but not yet confirmed a start 

date
• Market Harborough et al – 2wte - Mid Nov Start

47



EXPERT*

ENHANCED*

ESSENTIAL*

Patient Group: Most complex, top 5% of pop 
Patient Selection: MDT referral, hospital referral 
Approach: MDT across PCN
MDT level – PCN MDT meeting, multi-organisational 
interventions 
Offer: Risk strat tool, Personalised needs assessment, 
1:1 support, ongoing case management and complex 
care coordination, post discharge follow up,  support 
for carers/family 
Outcome: Integrated Care Reduced unplanned service 
use. Better supported carers

Patient Group: Stable complex / high risk, top 30% of 
pop
Patient Selection: Ref from PCN clinician, local 
intelligence, LPT/ASC frontline staff
Approach – PCN Social Prescribing offer
MDT level – Practice MDT meeting, disciplinary 
interventions 
Offer –Social prescription assessment, active sign-
posting, referral to appropriate prevention and 
targeted services
Outcome: Better informed patients & carers, able to 
live well with their LTCs. Improved community 
resilience 

Patient Group: Whole population 
Patient Selection – Opportunistic
Approach – Practice level, trained sign-posting offer 
Offer – Verbal advice and guidance, sign-posting to LA 
prevention offer (e.g. First Contact Plus), self care/self-
referral preferred method of access 
Outcome: People are supported to stay well. 
Improved community resilience. People make 
informed choices when health changes

People                               
with 

complex                       
needs                             

(GPLWs East/ 
Care Co-ord West

People with Long Term 
Physical and Mental Health 

Conditions 

Social Prescribing 
Link Worker

Whole Population 

Sign-posting

*HEE Care Navigation Competency framework

Trusted-assessor 
referral/flow 
between levels 
of care 
coordination 

Appropriate 
flow between 
levels of care 
coordination 

48



Care Co-ordinators - WLCCG 

• September 2019: Business 
case supported by F&P 
Committee✓

• October 2019: 
Engagement with LCC ASC 
& draft implementation 
plan started

✓

• November 2019: 
Communication to 
localities/wider partners

• December 2019: Go live
✓

49



50



 
 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF LLR   
 

WORKFORCE WORK STREAM FOR THE STP – PROGRESS AND 
CHALLENGES AT A SYSTEM LEVEL 

 
Purpose of report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with an update on progress and 
priorities of the STP workforce workstream and to outline key risks and gaps to the 
system, in fulfilling the workforce ambition within the Long Term Plan and 
implementing a system workforce plan that supports the move towards a shadow 
integrated Care system.  

  
Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

2. The local health and care system across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland 
(LLR) is currently engaged in re-designing pathways of care to create a more 
integrated and joined-up system of care. This includes better preventive and 
supportive care in out-of-hospital settings, improved links between mental health 
and physical health, better support to people living with multi-morbidity, and support 
for the frail and elderly population. The development of the system workforce 
strategic plan links firmly to the following key pillars of integrations: 

 
 New models of care including, the integration between primary and secondary care 

will develop integrated pathways supported by teams. Following a Pre Consultation 
Business Case submission, UHL have been successful in its bid for capital which 
proposes the majority of acute services to be based on two sites, improving delivery 
of care and improvements in working conditions for staff. This will require a 
significant redesign of pathways to implement the reconfiguration across the main 
acute provider. This will require radical workforce changes  and the development of 
the workforce modelling that supports the delivery of this is in the early stages. 

 
 Integration between health and social care – The evolving system models of care 

demonstrate the need for a more flexible workforce that supports integration at 
place and primary care network neighbourhood level. Year one and two priorities 
include the continued development of the All Age Mental Health Transformation 
Programme  which is a five year programme to redesign care pathways across the 
system to reduce the demand for specialist inpatient care and out of area 
placements. This includes a focus on improving patient flow to enhance use of 
available capacity and capability in services, development of new models of care 
working with non-traditional providers e.g. resilience building and early identification 
in Children’s and Young People and strengthening liaison between 

51 Agenda Item 8



 

urgent/emergency care and criminal justice to identify and divert patients into 
appropriate care pathways 
 
The Community Services Redesign programme which will change how care is 
delivered, with a focus on Home First and community health care rather than acute 
based care. This will see a full redesign of the workforce to support the changing 
models of care as they emerge, including rapid response, recovery and enablement 
services, integrating some core community services and social care; Primary Care 
network and wrap around locality/neighbourhood teams – will draw on the extensive 
work already undertaken across the past two years on the building block 
development of integrated locality Teams, across health and social care. 

 
3. In order to link to the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the approach will use 

population health Management data to segment the local population and develop 
interventions based on greatest need. It is known the local population has an 
average growth of 1% with the following projections: 
 Forecast increase of 3.6% for children and young people, 1.7% for adults 
 Increase in the older population will be proportionally higher than overall 
 A significant increase in the number of people over 65 years by 33% 
 Over 16.000 people in LLR with a learning disability 
 Near doubling of the 90+ population by 2030 
 96,580 new homes being built 2011-2031 

 
4. LLR has a culturally diverse population which also means a local priority for 

developing the workforce transformation plan is to ensure the system has a 
reflective workforce and one that meets future population needs.  

 
5. The STP workforce work stream is a key programme of work for the STP, and a  

critical enabler to clinical works streams. The Senior Leadership Team is committed 
to ensure the STP workforce programme is central in all planning and care model 
development.  

 
Recommendation 
 

6. The Board is asked to note the progress in developing the STP workforce 
workstream and comment on the proposals to develop a system workforce plan 
which supports the move towards an integrated care system.  

 
Background 
 

7. LLR has committed itself to an ambitious vision for transforming its workforce 
across the next five years. Having a workforce with the necessary skills and 
behaviours in the right place is critical to supporting the local population to stay 
healthy, lead independent lives and reach their full potential. This will entail 
designing workforce solutions against the emerging models of care. 

 
8. The aim is to underpin the workforce system plan by adopting a population health 

management approach, in which the population is segmented into groups of people 
sharing common characteristics, targeting interventions and the workforce design 
around these segments. LLR has the largest population in the East Midlands region 
and Leicester City is the largest city population. Both universities are expanding 

52



 

student numbers and there is continued expansion of housing, with major 
infrastructure change expected. 

 
9. To reflect LLR’s culturally diverse population, a workforce transformation priority is 

to ensure the system has a reflective workforce and one that meets future 
population needs. 

 
10. There is approximately 20,000 whole time equivalent healthcare staff currently 

working across the three main NHS provider organisations in LLR. As with Adult 
Social care, many of the challenges faced by NHS providers of healthcare reflect 
the national situation. The local approach aims is create more integrated joined up 
workforce, develop career pathways that span the whole system, and include 
rotational placements and, career pathways. It will also ensure a focus on 
developing a system sustainable workforce, and be conscious to avoid destabilising 
one part of the system to accommodate another part through development of new 
roles. 

 
11. The LLR Local Workforce Action Board (LWAB) will be responsible for developing 

the capacity, capability, governance and ways of working of the LLR workforce. 
LWAB has reviewed its operating model and priorities for the coming 12 months. It 
takes into account STP Better Care Together programme priorities, NHS Long 
Term Plan priority areas and delivery of the People Plan priorities. It will require 
closer partnership working with collective responsibility to support the development 
of an integrated care system (ICS) across LLR. 

 
12. Five sub-groups of LWAB will drive the implementation of the workforce plan (each 

with multi agency representation). The groups will use analytics and data to inform 
its strategies, interventions and actions. 

 
13. As progress is made towards a shadow form of an ICS,  work will be progressed 

through the LWAB business and strategic groups to develop \ respond to ensure 
the delivery of a workforce plan reflects system requirements. An initial priority is on 
the organisational development support to the local system as it evolves into an 
ICS, to ensure the workforce is engaged, supported and empowered to deliver care 
at its best. 

 
14. A transformational workforce plan is in development. There is recognition that it is in 

its infant stage and action is being taken to address this: The LLR System 
Leadership Team recently reinforced their support to prioritise workforce, 
recognising it as a core measure of an ICS and significant area of transformational 
change. The emerging shadow Integrated Care System and, capital funding for 
University Hospitals Leicester to reconfigure from three sites to two, creates an 
important context and the necessary levers for radically transforming pathways and 
services, and realise the workforce requirements that underpin this. 

 
15. A system workforce structure is being developed that will provide additional 

resource and expertise by April 2020. This represents a critical gap at present, and 
will enable a focus on the development of an integrated system workforce plan and 
Implementation framework across 5 years. An executive sponsor is confirmed 
(Andy Williams CEO LLR CCGs) who will provide vital leadership to the 
programme, closing a key gap locally. In the short term a small system workforce 
infrastructure has been developed to begin the necessary workforce planning. The 

53



 

next steps include a full review of the work stream governance structures and sub-
structures to assure the system is equipped to deliver on the requirement set out in 
the NHS Interim people Plan. 

 
Overarching Key priorities 
 

 To develop a ‘system’ workforce plan and implementation framework  
   Develop set of system integrated delivery plans across five years 
 Plan priority areas across the system, and capture current and future workforce 

requirements across settings of care 
 Develop an LLR workforce dashboard that supports benchmarking of workforce, 

supports population health management workforce design, feeds future service 
redesign and will allow for continually monitoring KPIs as part of Long term plan. It 
also will enable the system to be more proactive with regards addressing system 
wide workforce risks and issues. Secure resource to support system workforce 
modelling and strategic planning  

   Set of workforce principles co-designed with stakeholders to ensure absolute 
transparency, collective input and ownership for the ‘system’ – to manage the 
workforce as a system plan and avoid destabilising one part of the system to 
compensate another 

   Continue providing targeted strategic workforce planning support to NHS Long 
Term Plan priority areas 

   Develop workforce analytics across health and ensure alignment of approaches’ for 
key workforce metrics. 

   Continued development of strategies to address work force supply – LLR attraction 
portal, retention, increased mobility across the system. 

 
Nest steps 
 

16. The following series of actions will be progress over the next 6 months: 

ACTIONS  TIMESCALE 

Interim System workforce Planning resource to 

provide five months infrastructure support  

 

November 2019 to March 2020  

Retain Interim System Strategy Support  Ongoing to March 2020  

Senior Workforce system team session, to include 

with SROs, system support and exec sponsor, to:  

- Review workforce strategy, plans, gaps 

and priorities  

- Identify resource requirements 

November – December 2019  

Review Governance structures of programme / 

LWAB and sub-structure(s) alignment to Interim 

NHS people plan priority areas  

November 2019 to December 2020  

54



 

Develop a workforce dashboard across LLR November 2020 – March 2020 

Confirm new posts and skill mix across 5 years 

aligned to new models of care  

January 2020 to June 2020  

System workforce team structure drafted within 

evolving ICS and present to SLT  

January 2020 – February 2020  

Deep dive LWAB session into workforce planning. 

Develop road map and milestones 

January – March 2020 

 

Appendix 
 
Plans on a Page 
 
Officers to Contact  
 
Louise Young 
Programme Management Lead – Integrated Care System (ICS) – LLR 
Head of Service Improvement and Delivery – WL CCG 
Louise.Young@westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk 
07785530047 
 
Sarah Willis 
Director of HR and OD, Leicestershire Partnership Trust  
Sarah.Willis@leicspart.nhs.uk 
 

55

mailto:Louise.Young@westleicestershireccg.nhs.uk
mailto:Sarah.Willis@leicspart.nhs.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: CANCER 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
Achieving World-Class Cancer Outcomes: A Strategy for England 2015-2020: 

 Joined up approach to cancer care. 

 Campaign to encourage early diagnosis. 

 Fast-track training of 200 non-medical endoscopists by the end of 2018. 

 More new cancer drugs. 

 Focus on 62-day cancer waiting time target 

 New quality of life metric. 
Cancer Taskforce ambitions are:Prevention; Increase rates of early diagnosis; Improve treatment and experience of cancer; Support 
people to live with and beyond cancer 
19 Cancer Alliances have been set up to test models of care and establish tools to measure cancer outcomes consistently.  
The workforce plan needs to support the delivery of Cancer Workforce Plan Phase 1 (to 2021) published by NHSE and HEE requiring 
an expansion in numbers and ongoing investment in staff. Key parts of the workforce are under pressure and action is being taken at 
a national level to ensure that we have enough staff to deliver the Cancer Taskforce. 

System needs to: 
Establish current workforce baseline and look at how many staff we need to deliver the service models; identify new skills required; 
new roles that might need to be created to deliver new service models. Innovation (genomics, AI, IT, immunotherapy) will disrupt 
serivce models and change workforce requirements.  
The whole system, including employers, commissioners, regulators and professiona bodies need to work together to make better use 
of existing supply, net expansion of skilled staff to support growth and transformation,  

Progress to date 
Increase in capacity and skills of key areas: 
Expansion of Clinical Radiology and international recruitment scheme (30 clinical radiologists recruited) 
Accelerated Clinical Endoscopist training (200 by 2018) 
Two-year return to practice programme for up to 300 former AHPs and HCS 
NHSE working with Cancer Alliance’s to determine workforce issues 
HEE is responsible for developing the Cancer Workforce Plan for England 
HEE M&E funding made available for a number of cancer related ACP programmes – information circulated 

Demand Summary 
Shortages: 
Oncologists (clinical and medical) 
H&N surgeons (critical) 
Dermatologists  
Chemotherapy Nurse Specialists (hard to recruit 
to) 
Clinical Nurse Specialists – ageing workforce and 
diffiult to succession plan due to lack of funded 
development posts 
Histopathology – under increasing workload and 
ageing workforce 
Diagnostic radiography – increase in diagnostics 
Therapeutic radiography – advancements in 
technology 
Sonographers – increasing demand, no reliable 
specific workforce data, no direct entry routes 
HCS – advances in genomics 
 

 

Supply Summary 
Oncologists – an increase in workforce 
forecast but will not meet growing demand 
as cancer rates increase 
Forecast supply for Histopathologists remains 
low 
CNS – no defined route and no nationally 
agreed competency and skills framework 
Diagnostic radiography is largest professional 
group in cancer workforce – supply unlikely 
to meet demand 
Therapeutic radiography – flows out of and 
back into NHS from similar settings is 
ineffecient and disruptive, 23% join the 
profession from overseas, reduction in 
applicants to programmes (7% of places 
unfilled) 
No direct entry routes into sonography and 
takes from other professions such as nursing, 
midwifery, physiotherapy, radiography etc. 

Actions Summary 
Retention strategies crucial for all staff 
groups 
Use of Apprenticeship routes and 
Advanced Clinical Practitioner roles 
Overseas recruitment 
Return to practice 
Develop clear pathways to CNS roles 
which are currently heavily dependent on 
cancer charity funding – learning from 
Macmillan 
AHPs - Bring in step-change from 
traditional medical model to more 
rehabilitative way of delivering care 
Advances in AI and genomics require a 
responsive and skilled workforce 

 

Risks and Mitigations 
Cancer care nursing and AHP posts still reliant on pump priming by Macmillan and Prostate cancer charities. 
Medical workforce – need to make better use of existing supply as well as investment in additional consultants working in cancer. 
 

57



APPENDIX 
 

  

Benefits to be Realised 
Ensure that we have the right skills to deliver the funded activity 
set out in the Cancer Taskforce Strategy by 2021. 

Next Steps 
To work with local cancer alliance to produce a robust workforce 
plan. 

58



APPENDIX 
 

   

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: COMMUNITY SERVICES REDESIGN 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
Develop and support the implementation of a workforce plan to deliver the new models of care and working arrangements as they 
emerge. New model based on Neighbourhood Community Nursing (Integrated ILTs); Home First Services (accessed via Locality 
Decision Units); Community bed based care (community hospitals for medical rehab and 24/7 care; Pathway 3 reablement beds with 
lower medical need and less 24/7 care).  
Overarching workforce and OD implications have been identified but the plan will need to flex and adapt as new models of care 
emerge 
Identify ways to prepare the whole workforce to deliver care at the appropriate level for the service spec so that other parts of the 
system have confidence and supports single assessment/trusted assessment 

System needs to: 
Articulate models of care at a service delivery level 
Support integration and working across boundaries 
Work as One team 

Progress to date 
Integration of Home First and Integrated Locality Teams into one programme (Out of Hospital). 
Submission of an Outline Business Case to CCB to seek approval in principle of the approved model. 
Preliminary workforce data and intelligence submitted to form part of the OBC. 
Scoping meeting with Pippa Hodgson Ltd to scope level of work required to support workforce transformation. 
 

Demand Summary 
Community nursing (including district nursing) offer is 
limited and does not have the ability to increase capacity 
to meet demand. 
Intensive community support (ICS) requires increased 
therapy input and more integration. Clarity of offer to be 
well defined to increase confidence in service. 
6.8WTE additional GP resource to cover Home First. 
Need to retrain and/or redeploy staff from bed-based 
provision to community (nursing and therapy). 
Increasing demand for ACP roles. 
Development of 7 new Clinical Care Coordinator roles. 
Reduced community hospital usage by up to 53%. 
Practice nurse vacancies plus ageing workforce. 
Primary care mental health worker gaps in provision. 
Demand for imaging and diagnostics in community. 

 

Supply Summary 
General Practice already under increasing 
pressure from demand – investment in 
19/20 for additional medical cover for 
Home First. Overseas recruitment 
programme. 
Huge demand for ACP/ANPs across multiple 
providers – danger of fishing from the same 
pool. 
Development of GPSI in frail, older person 
to fill gaps in senior medical workforce 
Insufficient supply of Practice Nurses and 
District Nurses. 
System wide requirement for ACP roles. 
Do we have sufficient numbers of 
occupational therapists across health and 
social care to grow the workforce? 
Shortage of radiographers so recruiting 
from overseas. 

 

Actions Summary 
OD strategic programme to be developed by March 
2019 
OD support at operational level to be delivered in 
Home First 
Functional Mapping to be undertaken in Home First 
and ILTs. 
Pre-Consultation Business Case to be developed 
and taken to CCB. 
Ensure that interdepencies with other workstreams 
are dealt with at a senior level to avoid ‘fishing in 
the same pond’. 

Risks and Mitigations 
GP workforce struggling with current demand – may not be able to meet additional requirement for medical cover despite financial 
investment – overseas recruitment and option to use Physician Associates/ACPs. 
Requirement for community imaging and diagnostics – some estates not fit for purpose and costly to staff community diagnostics – 
reliant on overseas recruitment. 
 

Benefits to be Realised 
Joint working across boundaries including integrated services 
and reduced duplication. 
Improved clinical pathways, increased community care, 
reduction in need for hospital services, economies of scale 
A strengthened, integrated community nursing offer 
Increase the number of patients that can be cared for 
appropriately at home rather than in a hospital bed. 
Faciltate faster discharge. 
 

Next Steps 
Full involvement with stakeholders on new models of care – 
hearts and minds 
Development of OD strategy 
OD support at operational level to help develop proposed 
models of care and appropriate staffing/skills mix – commencing 
with HF Access and Therapy Input 
Work through workforce and OD implications as new service 
models emerge 
 

59



APPENDIX 
 

 
 
  

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: FRAILTY 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
Ensure we have the right knowledge skills and education in place to address the specific needs of a frail elderly population including 
an understanding of appropriate approaches and care plans for those with a high clinical frailty score. 
Identify new roles which can address specific increased needs such as volunteers for patient advocacy (to support frail elderly 
patients who may not be supported by carer/family), meaningful activity coordinators for those with dementia. 
Increase capacity for more generalist roles which can address more multimorbidity issues and treat the whole patient and not just 
address medical need. 
Identify opportunities for more integration with volunteers and social care. 
Recognise the impact that a more mobile and flexible workforce can have on the frail elderly population and develop strategies to 
educate and develop this workforce and value the contribution of the temporary workforce 
Identify how health and social care professionals will work in a more integrated way to share critical information on patients eg 
District Nursing to be automatically notified of acute admissions in order to enable sharing of critical knowledge 

System needs to: 
Have clarity about how frail elderly patients will be identified and clarify a clinical checklist for health and social care workers to 
implement 
Clarify models of care and care functions for the frail elderly population and build appropriate workforces such as increased therapy 
services in UHL’s Hampton Suite, Frailty Emergency Teams to rapidly assess frail elderly patients and give appropriate and rapid 
interventions on presentation in hospital. 

Progress to date 
Hampton Suite currently has in place new workforce model which is being evaluated for impact on range of identified benefits 
Emergency Frailty Team in place in Emergency Department 
 

Demand Summary 
Increased therapists in emergency and 
Hampton Suite environments 
Increased advanced pharmacists specialising 
in care of elderly patients in ED 
Increased Geriatrician cover in ED including 
junior doctors 
 

Supply Summary 
Therapists and Pharmacists in 
place 
 
 
Limited supply of geriatricians and 
middle grade doctors 
 

Actions Summary 
Recruitment to therapy and senior 
pharmacy roles successful 
 
 
Increase development programmes for 
ACPs specialising in frail elderly 

Risks and Mitigations 
Medical Generalist training programmes will be relatively slow to deliver more generalist workforce: Devise strategy for increasing 
numbers of internal medicince trainees, devise strategy for increasing generalist skills to more specialist workforce 
 

Benefits to be Realised 
Improved patient experience for frail elderly population 

Next Steps 
Development of understanding of frail elderly workforce 
requirements in range of care settings including surgical wards 

60



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: LEARNING DISABILITY 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
A Workforce Plan for Learning Disability has yet to be developed, however there remains an urgent need to produce a LD workforce 
plan for NHSE as an output from the TCP based on Building the Right Support for those with a learning disability or autism.  
The workforce plan needs to set out a whole system response to deliver models of care that meet the needs of the local population, 
with care based around the individual using the principles of co-production. Need to have clarity about people’s roles and 
responsiblities including the role of the MDT. Maintain the key specialist posts that are making a difference and enhancing the MDT. 
Need to gather baseline data to establish current workforce. 

System needs to: 
The purpose of the LLR TCP/ Learning Disabilities work stream is to drive system-wide change and enable more people with a 
learning disability and/or autism to live in the community, with the right support and close to home aligned to the Building the 
Right Support model ensuring that people are not admitted to hospital unnecessarily and people are receiving the right care in the 
right place a the right time.  

Progress to date 

 New LD outreach team and service embedded 

 NHSE funding secured for crisis provision, autism and C&YP, and developed of an enhanced forensic service 

 Culture of least restrictive interventionss including STOMP implemented at the Agnes Unit 

 Accommodation strategy 

Demand Summary 
Learning disability population living for 
longer and with health complexities. 
Equality of access to physical and 
mental health services still impacting on 
health outcomes. 
Transition from CYP to adult services 
still not seamless. Enhance community 
team to include forensic expertise and 
skills. 
 

Supply Summary 
Fewer people entering Learning Disability 
nursing programmes which is resulting in a 
loss of pre-registration education provision 
as programmes become unviable. 
LD nurses work for both health and social 
care, as well as private providers and can be 
difficult to track.  
Delivery of forensic skills required. 
OD programme to support strengthening of 
MDT 

Actions Summary 
Need to establish baseline workforce 
data across health & care provision. 
 

 

Risks and Mitigations 

 Achieving Building the Right Support Trajectory requirements due to complex cases 

 Co-production of services, communication and support with families and people with lived experiences 

 Communications and wider engagement 

 Transition-aged young people and working relationsips between education, health and social care need strengthening 

 Silo strategy development between partner organisations but keen to finds ways to join-up 

 Significant risk are the complex patients that have challenging behaviours and have MoJ restrictions (impact on the number of 
beds commissioned) 

 Resource requirements to manage and deliver transformation 

 LPT’s All Age Transformation, timeframe and alignment to national/ local priorities and commissioning intensions 

 Limited provider market needing to develop capacity and capability to support complex individuals  

Benefits to be Realised 

 Clear process and procedure 
to prevent admission 

 Reduce the current inpatient 
length of stay and flow 

 Development and pilot of new 
approaches  

 People to have choice and 
control over their own health 
and care – shift the balance of 
power 

 Development of TCP specific 

Next Steps 

 Development of workforce plan 

 Continue to review and support individuals to enable safe transitions into the community 

 Work closely with providers to ensure that they have the skills and expereince to support 
complex individuals 

 Develop an enhanced learning disability forensic service 

 Plan for longer term focus and vision of learning disabilities beyond Transforming Care  

 Embed all programme developments into business usual 

 Developing bespoke accommodation to meet individual needs 

 TCP is developing a Rights-Based Approach to service delivery – how do we enable the LD 
population to live an ‘ordinary’ life. Must be All age/lifelong with co-production (all age).  

 Expand use of Personal Health Budgets – bespoke needs. 

61



APPENDIX 
 

  
accommodation  

62



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: MATERNITY SERVICES 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
Clearly articulate how the workforce will be developed to meet the key drivers which are two fold, the clinical drive to deliver 
sustainable maternity and neonatal services whilst developing a robust and costed workforce development plan that meets the 
needs laid out in the response to the NHSE commissioned National Maternity Review in 2016 and the Better Births report: 
Better Births is a five national five year NHS plan to promote: 

 Safer and more personalised care 

 Continuity of care (working with the Local Maternity System – LMS) 

 A limited number of different healthcare specialists 

 Better postnatal and perinatal mental health care 

 Multi-professional working 

 Working across boundaries 
Impact of plans to reduce number of acute sites as the current split site model exacerbates workforce issues and continuity models 
of care. Increasing population in women of childbearing age and increased complexities, high rates of infant mortality and teenage 
pregnancy and high proportion of population from BME groups whose first language is not English. Increase in establishment of 
midwives and midwifery support workers recommended by Birth Rate Plus. 
 

System needs to: 
The Local Maternity System is designed to improve services through joint working between the NHS, Local Authorities and Providers 
and include women and partners in making decisions about their care. Be cognisant of the Neonatal Critical Care Review as maternity 
services cannot be considered in isolation. Three to two site will enable co-location with services such as ED, HDU/ITU and specialist 
anaesthetic cover and the centralisation of ICU away from LGH and transfer of surgical spcialities including gynaecology will impact 
on maternity and neonatal services. A single site acute maternity centre at the LRI would be the model of choice with a potential 
stand alone maternity led unit at LGH. Future consultation on all womens and maternity services is part of the wider Better Care 
Together transformation programme which underpins the STP in LLR and includes the viability of St Mary’s Birthing Centre in Melton. 
 

Progress to date 

 PCBC submitted with detailed plans, including workforce, for the new models of care, including a single site maternity unit 

 Baseline data on posts and staff in post has been established and work on-going to translate new models of care into sustainable 
workforce solutions for Medical staff (all levels), Midwifes, Nurses, support workers and multi professional teams 

 

Demand Summary 
Birth Rate Plus is refreshing the report for LLR 
based on lower birth rate numbers 
epxerience locally in the last 2 to 3 years.  All 
reports and benchmarking exercises, 
including desk top run recently by NHSE and 
HEE, indicate we need more midwifes and 
more midwifery support workers 
 

Supply Summary 
Newly Qualified midwifery supply 
meeting needs. New single site 
with enhanced facilities should 
attract staff to work in LLR.  
Single site should improve 
efficiencies across maternity and 
neonatel care 
 

Actions Summary 
Awaiting final report from Birth Rate Plus 
refresh for LLR.  Medical modelling which 
looks at numbers of Consultant and Training 
grades across Obs, Gynae and Neonates are 
dependent on the model agreed after 
consultation.  LMS requirements to meet 
continuity targets required by March 2019 

Risks and Mitigations 
Single site dependent on outcome of PCBC. Birth Rate Plus report provides robust methodology for midwifery staffing. 
 

Benefits to be Realised 

 A flexible, skilled and competent workforce that’s able to 
meet the needs of service 

 Provide personalised care with named midwife 

 Development of a safe environment and sustainable 
maternity and neonatal services 

 Provide a range of choice options and improved continuity 

 Develop integrated pathways across neonatal services and 
community paediatrics 

Next Steps 

 Birth Rate Plus report for LLR refresh due late 2018 

 Progress against LMS targets is being monitored on-going 
basis for targets in March 2019 (20%) and March 2020 (50%) 

63



APPENDIX 
 

  
 Single site should improve efficiencies  

64



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: MENTAL HEALTH 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
The All Age Mental Health Transformation Programme is a five year programme to redesign care pathways across the system to reduce the 
demand for specialist inpatient care and  Out of Area placements.  This includes a focus on improving patient flow to enhance use of available 
capacity and capability in services,  development of new models  of care working with non-traditional providers e.g. resilience building and early 
identification in Childrens and Young People and strengthening liaison between urgent/emergency care and criminal justice to identify and divert 
patients into appropriate care pathways.  
In addition Stepping forward to 2020/21: The mental health workforce plan for England sets out a range of actions to increase the number of 
people working in mental health services between 2016 and 2021 in order to support over a million more patients accessing treatment with 
improved quality of care. Leicestershire, Leicester and Rutland’s part in this is to increase the number of staff in post within “expansion areas” by 
328 by 2021. The focus is on staff in post in the 7 “expansion areas”:  

• Children and Young People 
• Adult IAPT 
• Perinatal mental health 
• Early Intervention Psychosis 
• Emergency Mental Health Liaison 
• Liaison and Diversion (with Criminal Justice) 

• Crisis & Home Treatment. 
System needs to: 

 Baseline the number of posts and staff in post across the system 

 Develop a workforce plan that enables the system to meet the Stepping Forward deliverables  

 Support the development of workforce plans as part of the All Age Mental Health  Transformation Programme 

 Develop recruitment and retention plans to maintain and grow the mental health workforce 

 Consider the future education and training requirements of mental health workforce and the wider workforce (drug and alocohol 

awareness, brief interventions, suicide awareness and early identification) when deciding investment priorities 

Support and enable the interface between the mental health workstream and other workstreams 
Progress to date: 

 The baseline number of posts and staff in post has been established 

 Workforce plan developed including the numbers required to fully deliver Stepping Forward deliverables by 2020/21, acknowledging that 
there is a financial gap  

 Reported achievement at March 2018 was an additional 93.9wte staff in post with a further growth of 31.3 between March and 
September 2018. 

 All Age  Mental Health Transformation Programme - work has begun to develop a workforce planning methodology that will be used 
consistently across the programme. 

 Business case  for workforce investment in perinatal mental health was successful and recruitment is ongoing 

 Business cases yet to be considered for workforce investment in CRISIS and Core 24 (Liaison Mental Health) 

 Functional mapping work has been commissioned in MHSOP inpatient services to identify best use of new and emerging roles 

 LLR Workshop was held on 28
th

 September with key stakeholders to develop a shared understanding of the LLR workforce position, 

trajectory and financial implications. 
Demand Summary 
The All Age Mental Health Transformation Programme 
will redesign all care pathways and the workforce that 
wraps around those pathways. The workforce demand 
from this work is as yet unknown. 
 
The mental health workforce plan for England requires 
an increase of 328 staff in post within mental health 
“expansion areas” by 2021. 

Supply Summary 
 
Supply hotspots are Registered Mental 
Health Nurses, Consultant Psychiatrists 
and IAPT PWP workers. This reflects the 
national position. 
 
Development and embedding of new 
roles within mental health required. 

Actions Summary 
 
Continue to support workforce plan 
development as part of the  All Age  Mental 
Health Transformation Programme 
 

 

Risks and Mitigations 
The trajectory and growth plan remains highly challenging in the context of local financial plans and workforce supply.  All reports will reflect this as 
a caveat on the plan.  Lack of whole-system understanding of the mental health workforce (commissioners and providers; health, social and 
voluntary sectors).  

Benefits to be Realised 
Improved access to services at an earlier stage with a greater focus on prevention 
and mental wellbeing 
Services accessible at the right time: 7 days a week, 24 hours a day when needed 
Services delivered in a more integrated way: specialist services, primary care and 

Next Steps 
A deep dive meeting with HEE will require senior CCG and LPT 
representation.  New date to be agreed. 
A second stakeholder workshop will be held in March 2019. 
Developing a workforce planning approach to support the All Age 

65



APPENDIX 
 

  

physical healthcare settings 
Embedding mental health services into the NHS 

Mental Health Transformation Programme 

66



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: PRIMARY CARE 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
Deliver the direction for the future of primary care in line with the LLR General Practice 5 Year Forward View Strategy: 

 Support recruitment across staff groups where historically the system has struggled 

 Manage the existing workforce flexibly across the system 

 Develop staff to fit into new accredited roles based on a competency and skills framework 
 

System needs to: 
Work together to develop and co-design a resilient and sustainablemodel in which general practicecan thrive. 
Manage the existing workforce flexibly across the system and support the recuitement across staff groups where historically the 
system has struggled. 
Address the under-investment that has happened across general practice on a national scale 

 

Progress to date: 
Introduction of new roles across LLR such as Clinical Pharmacists, Emergency Care Practitioners, Nursing Associates, Physician 
Associates and Medical Assistants. 
Development of Physician Associate programme offered at De Montfort University. 
Introduction of workstream lead for International GP Recruitment Project Manager 
 

Demand Summary 
Gap in GP training numbers 
Requirement to meet NHSE target of 639 WTE 
GPs by 2020 (currently 541) 
Shortage of Practice Nurses and ageing 
workforce 
Fewer GPs taking on Partnerships and current 
senior workforce 35% over 55years 
High cost of locum workforce 
GP workforce reducing number of clinical 
sessions or leaving prior to retirement age 
High demand for ANPs in primary care and 
other parts of the system 

 
 

Supply Summary 
Being addressed nationally by increasing 
GP training places 
International recruitment 
Use of other health professionals for role 
substitution (clinical pharmacists, 
advanced nurse practioners) 
Development of nurse associate roles  
Local Physician Associate programme 
commenced September 2017 
Training academy for Practice Managers 
Need for ANP roles and Nurse Associates 
Projected increase of 10% in primary care 
workforce by 2021 

Actions Summary 
Continue with implementation of LLR 
GPFYFV workforce plan including 
international recruitment, role 
substitution, re-skilling, skill mix, new 
ways of working. 
 

Risks and Mitigations 
Focusing on leavers and joiners alone will not resolve the issues with workforce so look at increasing retention of NQ GPs and 
encourage delayed retirement 
High use of locums can destabilise practices – look for ways to encourage locums to take on salaried posts 
Assumption of using more ANPs for role substitution – ANPs have three year lead in time and are costly to train and support – look at 
system-wide approach to training adequate numbers 

Benefits to be Realised 
Workforce in place that can deliver: 
Care streamed according to need with improved outcomes, 
appropriate access, reduced inequalities, care closer to home, 
wider service offer, right care first time. 
Joint working across boundaries including integrated services 
and reduced duplication. 
GP staff with manageable workload, portfolio career, 
opportunities to diversify and time to care. 
Improved clinical pathways, increased community care, 
reduction in need for hospital services, economies of scale 
Improved clinical pathways, increased community care, 
reduction in need for hospital services, economies of scale 
 

Next Steps 

 A concerted and continued focus on delievring the 
Interational GP recruitment programme in LLR  

 1
st

 cohort of 15 GP’s arriving in practice July 2019 

 2
nd

 cohort of 15 GP’s arriving in practice Dec 2019 

 An enhance Retention Programme (supported by NHSE) will 
be launched by April 2019 

 Included is a Coaching & Mentoring programme to 
build GP resilience 

 Also included is an Appreciative Enquiry Survey  
Create a Single Point of Access for all Primary Care support 
options to all Primary Care professionals 

67



APPENDIX 
 

 
  

 

68



APPENDIX 
 

DEMAND SUPPLY ACTION PLAN 

TRANSFORMATIONAL PLAN: URGENT & EMERGENCY CARE 

Workforce Plan needs to: 
We need to shift the focus of care from acute to care closer to home, adopting the principles of Home First. 
We need to: 

 Secure the future of the emergency department through reducing attrition, improve retention and build a multiprofessional 
workforce 

 Deliver the Blueprint for the Integrated Urgent Care Service vision for a multi-disciplinary, highly professional clinical and 
non-clinical workforce 

 Continue with workforce plans to deliver a resiliant, sustainable general practice mulitprofessional workforce 

System needs to: 
Integration of services across the system. Those services include: 

 A&E 

 GP Out Of Hours 

 Urgent Care centres 

 NHS111 

 Ambulance services 
Reliant on All Age Transformation programme for mental health to improve access to services and reduce unecessary/inappropriate 
admission to A&E. Digitilsation and the resultant impact on patients and staff in order to manage more self care, digital monitoring of 
conditions to release staff, share patient records and the patient journey for seamless transition and care. 

Progress to date 
ED ‘Hot Floor’ implemented to improve flow 
Frailty Emergency Squad and frailty pathway to enable rapid flow out of ED 
Functional Mapping commenced in Community Services Redesign 
Development of Band 6 paramedics for see and treat progressing 
Direct booking from CNH to GP practices rolling out 
Increased support for care homes including telemedicine 

Demand Summary 
General Practice demand for 
Advanced Clinical Practitioners/ more 
GPs and Physician Associates 
Increase in Paramedics to meet target 
of one on every crew 
Good analytical staff to deal with 
increase in data gathering, sharing and 
analysis 
New roles and skill mix 
 
 
 

Supply Summary 
Nursing supply our biggest risk 
Increase in training posts in Emergency 
Medicine 
Alternative sources of recruitment including 
overseas 
Recruitment and retention of ASC staff an 
issue 
Right number of staff to deliver current and 
future demand for diagnostics 
GPFYFV strategy to increase GP numbers 
Difficult to recruit sufficient paramedic 
numbers – overseas recruitment strategy 
 
 

Actions Summary 
Need to continue to attract trainees and 
EM consultants to LLR 
GPFYFV to deliver workforce 
development across the rest of general 
practice/primary care 
Implementation of Analytics Tool to 
establish workforce baseline 
Systems leadership, improved 
leadership capacity and capability 
 

Risks and Mitigations 
Urgent and Emergency Care is dependent upon many interdependencies. This is a system wide issue which requires each part to 
be enabled to develop, removing boundaries and in a way that impacts least on patient care. 
 

Benefits to be Realised 
More people treated closer to home/in the right place 
Seamless care pathways 
Reduction in conveyance – more see & treat 
People navigated appropriately to the right part of the service 
for their need 
Reduce DToC 

Next Steps 
Community Services Redesign programme underway 
PCN programme within primary care 
Development of LLR Digital Roadmap 
Await outcome of Functional Mapping exercise to establish skill 
mix 
 

69



APPENDIX 
 

  

Trusted Assessment will stop people receiving multiple 
assessments and having to keep repeating their story 

 

70



APPENDIX 
 

 

71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND THE DIRECTOR 
OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES 

 
ADVERSE CHILDHOOD EXPERIENCES 

 
Purpose of the report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with a progress update on the work 
undertaken in line with the Children and Families Partnership Plan 2018-2021 to develop 
a trauma informed approach to addressing Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs). 

  
Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

2. The Children and Families Partnership Plan is aligned to the Leicestershire County 
Council Strategic Plan and focuses on the added value of approaching strategic priorities 
across the partnership to ensure consistent communication and service delivery to 
children and families. 

 
Recommendation 
 

3. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the report. 
 

Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 

4. Following a development session in November 2018 which focused on the findings of a 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment concerning mental health and commissioning 
intentions for 2019/20, the Health and Wellbeing Board requested that the Children and 
Families Partnership develop an approach to ACEs for Leicestershire. 

 
Background 
 

5. ACEs refer to some of the most intensive and frequently occurring sources of stress that 
children may suffer early in life. Such experiences include multiple types of abuse, 
neglect, violence between parents or caregivers, other kinds of serious household 
dysfunction such as alcohol and substance abuse, and peer, community and collective 
violence (World Health Organisation). 
 

6. The term was originally developed in the United States for the Adverse Childhood 
Experiences survey which found that as the number of ACEs increased in the population 
studied, so did the risk of experiencing a range of health conditions in adulthood. There 
have been a number other studies, for example in Wales and Scotland, which have 
uncovered similar findings. 

 
7. Commonly cited and the most researched adverse childhood experiences that are 

known about include verbal, physical and sexual abuse, physical and psychological 

 

73 Agenda Item 9



 
 

neglect, parental death, divorce, substance misuse, mental health, attempted suicide 
and incarceration. 

 
8. ACE Research indicates that four or more adverse childhood exposures significantly 

increases the odds of a person having a sexually transmitted infection (by 2 ½ times), 
using illicit drugs (5 x increased risk), being addicted to alcohol (over 7x increased risk), 
and attempting suicide (over 12x increased risk). Exposure to ACEs during the life 
course can also lead to disruptive nervous, hormonal and immune development, social 
emotional and learning problems, adoption of health harming behaviours and crime, non- 
communicable diseases, disability, social problems and low productivity and ultimately 
early death. 
 

Proposals/Options 
 

9. In order to establish a local approach to managing ACEs, the Children and Families 
Partnership established a steering group. The steering group, which includes 
representatives from public health, health, local authority and CCGs, has over the past 
six months undertaken work including:  

 

 Organising a multi-agency event around “First Steps to a Trauma Informed Approach 
to Address Adverse Childhood Experiences” held on 21 May 2019. The event 
included key note presentations from Ann Berry, Public Health Nottinghamshire, Dr 
Warren Larkin, Clinical Psychologist and Matt Buttery, CEO of Triple P and 
workshops delivered by partners. 

 Learning from a Lottery funded programme in Blackpool (Better Start) which focuses 
on promoting good early child development that uses a trauma informed approach to 
address ACEs to learn the lessons from this programme. 

 Undertaken discussions with the Violence Reduction Unit to identify how the 
Partnership can work together and to explore funding opportunities especially in 
relation to workforce development. 

 Delivered a strategic leader’s workshop, facilitated by Dr Warren Larkin, held on 19 
September 2019. The focus of the workshop was to begin the development of a 
shared vision and to agree how a trauma informed approach could be progressed 
across Leicestershire.  

Proposed next steps: 

 For the Children and Families Partnership to agree to adopt the Trauma 
Aware System Change (TASC) Model (Appended to the report) as a 
framework to develop a trauma aware whole system approach for 
Leicestershire; 

 To set up a task group for each TASC strand (Community, Workforce, 
Commissioning, Prevention, Increased Access to Intervention) with identified 
leads responsible for reporting back to the Children and Families Partnership 
Board; 

 For the Children and Families Partnership Board to progress the governance 
element of the TASC model; 

 Each task group to have an initial meeting before January 2020 Partnership 
Board meeting; 

74



 
 

 Each task group to undertake a mapping exercise of current activity and 
leads to provide a report to the Partnership Board in March 2020  

 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Jane Roberts  
Strategic Public Health Commissioner  
Tel: 0116 3053196 
Email: Jane.roberts@leics.gov.uk  
 
Ellie Lowe 
Service Manager Children and Families Wellbeing Service 
Tel: 0116 3056511 
Email: ellie.lowe@leics.gov.uk  
 
Appendix 
 
Trauma Aware System Change (TASC) model 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
 
 

75



 
 

            
            Appendix   
 

 

76



        
    

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28th NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF LEICESTERSHIRE HOUSING SERVICES PARTNERSHIP  
 

UPDATE ON THE WORK OF THE LEICESTERSHIRE HOUSING  
 

SERVICES PARTNERSHIP 
 
Purpose of report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to update members of the Health & Wellbeing Board on 

the work of the Leicestershire Housing Services Partnership (HSP).  
  

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

2. Housing in Leicestershire is the statutory responsibility of the seven district councils. 
The HSP was formed as a partnership in recognition that the impact of poor and 
inadequate housing reaches wider than just the statutory agencies. 
 

3. The Lightbulb Project was realised as a consequence of the Housing Offer to Health 
report commissioned from the Chartered Institute of Housing by the HSP in 2013, 
this is part funded by the Better Care Fund. 

 
Recommendation 
 
4. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the report. 
 
Background 
 
5. The HSP meets bi-monthly and sets annual priorities. An update on the current 

priorities is set out below:- 
 
Homelessness & Rough Sleeping 
 

6. The Homeless Reduction Act 2017 came into force on 1st April 2018 and, this placed 
increased responsibilities upon local authorities to assess applicant’s needs and to 
prevent and relieve homelessness. This has increased the demand for service and 
the burden upon local authorities and, the numbers of people in temporary 
accommodation have also increased across the County; there were over 400 people 
in temporary accommodation during Q1 (excluding the City) and, Q2 has seen an 
increase on this figure of over 20%. 
 

7. Data also tells us that an increased number of residents are under notice to quit and, 
voluntary sector partners within the partnership report a significant increase in 
numbers seeking advice. 

 

77 Agenda Item 10



 

8. A ‘rough sleeping snapshot’ figure will be established when the annual count or 
estimate process takes place across the City and County on 19th November 2019. 
These numbers will be formally submitted to MHCLG by 13th December 2019. 

 
9. The partnership has been successful in bids for funding this year to the value of 

£277,000 and, will be submitting a further ask in the current funding round for the 
Rapid Rehousing Pathway fund. 

 
Hoarding  

 
10. A multi agency task & finish group was established earlier in the year as hoarding 

has been recognised as an escalating problem across many partners. The Hospital 
Enablement Team (HET) have already spent their 2019 / 20 budget allocation and, 
clean & clear was the highest reason that the HET team received referrals during Q2 
of this year. 
 

11. Positives from the group are that a support group which had been established by the 
Leicestershire Fire and Recue Service is now supported by the Leicestershire 
Partnership Trust with clinicians present at the meetings.  

 
12. Data and intelligence has been shared across partners and, as part of future actions, 

there will be a shift to trying to resolve some of the reasons for hoarding, rather than 
the reactive clean and clear as happens now. There will be a standardised process 
for managing hoarding across Leicester and Leicestershire with effect from 1st April 
2020. 

 
13. Design and development of an app for professionals is under consideration and, it is 

hoped that this will move forwards in the next six months but, it requires sign up by 
21 local authorities before the application developer will support its development – 
this initiative was as a consequence of a bid to the Adult Social Care Accelerator 
fund. 

 
 Universal Credit 

 
14. Relationships with the DWP have continued to improve and, co-location of the DWP 

in certain district, together with a local escalation mechanism has lead to improved 
services to users. However, there is anecdotal evidence of considerable wait times, 
particularly when using the helpline and, there is also anecdotal evidence of 
increased dependence on foodbanks. Further work is being undertaken to evidence 
these concerns. 
 
Housing Protocols 
 

15. A number of housing protocols are in development, including one for Care Leavers. 
This is nearing completion and will be agreed through local governance processes. 
 
 
 
Provision of Accommodation 
 

16. The HSP continues to support the delivery of various LCC Accommodation 
strategies, including facilitation of meetings between developers and strategic 

78



 

partners and work with health, strategic providers and district councils to support the 
provision of supported living and step down accommodation. The challenge of a lack 
of suitable accommodation for many client groups is an ongoing concern and will 
continue to shape the work programme.  
 

Resource Implications 
 
17. There are no resource implications arising from this report. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Jane Toman 
Chief Executive and Chair of the Leicestershire Housing Services Partnership 
0116 272 7576 
Jane.toman@blaby.gov.uk 
 

79

mailto:Jane.toman@blaby.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28 November 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE VIOLENCE REDUCTION NETWORK AND THE OFFICE 
OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISISONER FOR LEICESTERSHIRE  

 
THE VIOLENCE REDUCTION NETWORK AND PREVENTION BOARD 

 
1. Purpose of the report 

 
1.1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the establishment of a 

Violence Reduction Network for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland and a new 
sub-regional Prevention Board. 

  
2. Link to the local Health and Care System 

 
2.1. Both the Violence Reduction Network and the Prevention Board sit under the 

Strategic Partnership Board which includes representatives from all public services 
across LLR. The Strategic Partnership Board Terms of Reference focus on a single 
purpose of minimising harmful behaviours within our communities. The term 
“harmful behaviours” was deliberately chosen to encompass the work of all public 
services including health. This reflects the fact that health outcomes have a major 
impact on criminal justice outcomes and vice versa. It also reflects the belief that 
many of the challenging problems facing our communities have their roots in social 
and lifestyle attitudes and behaviours which cannot be addressed without 
collaborative commitment across agencies and communities. The Index of Multiple 
Deprivation has often been used to provide underpinning analysis of local crime 
issues. It tends to demonstrate that challenging issues overlap each other in local 
communities, confronting health, social care and criminal justice agencies equally.  
 

2.2. More broadly the Police and Crime Plan focusses on the long term prevention of 
criminal behaviours, recognising that this requires input with individuals at an early 
stage before those behaviours have become established. This recognition is shifting 
the emphasis of OPCC activity from reactive responses to emergency situations to 
the long term development of communities and early intervention with individuals at 
risk of developing offending behaviours.  
 

3. Recommendation 
 
3.1. Members of the Board are asked to: 

i. Note the contents of this report 
ii. Consider how members can contribute to the work of the Violence 

Reduction Network 
iii. Consider how members can contribute to the work of the Prevention Board 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

81 Agenda Item 11



 
 

4. Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 
 

4.1. The Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Police and Crime Panel considered a 
report on the progress of the Violence Reduction Unit at its meeting on the 24 
September 2019. The Leicestershire Safer Communities Strategy Board considered 
a similar update at its meeting on the 20 September 2019.  

 
5. Background 
 
5.1. Violence Reduction Network 

 
5.2. Context 

 
5.3. The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner (OPCC), Leicestershire Police 

and the Public Health Departments for Leicester and Leicestershire have been 
working on the development of a public health informed response to violence 
reduction since early 2019. This culminated with an event on 6 August 2019 
wherein the proposals were presented to the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB). 
Immediately before this event, the Home Office approached the OPCC to bid for a 
sum of £880,000 specifically to set up a violence reduction unit. LLR had been 
selected, alongside 17 other areas, on the basis of the level of knife-related injuries 
dealt with by the city’s main hospital, in Leicestershire’s case the Royal Infirmary.  
 

5.4. The bid for funds was successful and the LLR Violence Reduction Network (our 
VRU) commenced operations on 1 September 2019. Funding is currently up until 
31 March 2020. 

 
5.5. In relation to Home Office expectations, the VRN needs to deliver the core function: 

‘To offer leadership, establish a core membership and, working with all relevant 
agencies operating locally, provide strategic coordination of the local response to 
serious violence’. The prescribed core membership is: Chief constables, the PCC, 
the local authorities with responsibility for the geographical areas targeted by the 
activities of the VRU, CCGs, Public Health England, the Youth Offending Team and 
appropriate representation of relevant local educational institutions. The VRN is 
also expected to adopt a ‘public health’ approach in developing the local response 
to reducing violence and take advice from Public Health England in doing so. There 
are also two mandatory products that have to be delivered within the period of the 
grant agreement, a ‘strategic needs assessment’, identifying the drivers of serious 
violence locally and the cohorts most affected and a ‘response strategy’, describing 
the multi-agency response being delivered locally and the action being taken by the 
VRN to enhance local responses. There is also an expectation that at least 20% of 
the funding will be spent on interventions. 
 

5.6. Alongside this, the OPCC has also been working with Leicestershire Police to 
ensure that “prevention” is a key element of the developing police operating model. 
This reflected the broader commitment to the prevention of harmful behaviours 
contained in the Police and Crime Plan and the wider commitment across the 
Strategic Partnership Board. The OPCC has consulted with Directors of Public 
Health across LLR about how best to integrate its work with the endeavours of both 
public health departments and established a new Board entitled the Prevention 
Board. The details of the Board are contained in the Appendix.  
 

82



 
 

5.7. Progress 
 

5.8. The governance structure for the VRN is now in place. The VRN Programme Board, 
which is a sub-board of the Strategic Partnership Board, is now operational. 
Alongside attending a workshop in September 2019 to develop the vision, mission 
and approach of the VRN, the Programme Board met on 1 November 2019 and 
approved the project plans. There will also be two sub-groups, a VRN Development 
Group comprising of agency champions and a Community Advisory Panel 
comprising members of the local communities. A central VRN team is also now 
operational. This comprises of largely seconded staff. Led by the Strategic Director, 
the team also has Consultants in Public Health, Data Analysts, a Programme 
Manager, a Service Design and Implementation Lead, a Community Engagement 
Lead and a Project Support Officer.  

 
5.9. It has been agreed that the initial focus of the VRN, in line with the Home Office’s 

prescribed ‘success measures’, will be to prevent and reduce youth violence (up to 
age 25) and in particular serious youth violence in public spaces including knife 
crime.  However, our intention is to broaden out the focus to other forms of violence 
in due course. 

 
5.10. The VRN’s initial aims have been agreed and at this stage focus on meeting the 

requirements set out by the Home Office and reflect the importance of 
understanding the nature, impact and causes of violence locally, taking stock of 
current strengths and gaps and mobilising wide-ranging support for violence 
prevention.  They are:  

 

 To improve our understanding of violence locally and its root causes through 
data gathering and analysis from a range of sources.  

 To develop and share models of effectiveness for violence prevention and 
reduction, through drawing on local, national and international knowledge.  

 To understand and improve relevant services through service-mapping, 
identifying and pursuing opportunities for integrated working, and developing, 
testing and evaluating new or existing services to fill gaps in provision.  

 To ensure communities, including those most affected by violence, are fully 
involved in both improving our understanding and in the design and delivery of 
solutions.  

 To build momentum and secure the commitment to change through designing 
and deploying campaigns and assembling a virtual network of champions and 
ambassadors across the Network.  

 Drawing on the above, to co-produce a Strategic Needs Assessment (SNA), a 
Response Plan and secure commitment to a Long-Term Plan for Violence 
Prevention. 
 

5.11. By the end of March 2020, we intend to have articulated our ‘Violence Prevention 
System’ wherein all key players understand their role in preventing violence and are 
working towards agreed improvements. 

 
5.12. To achieve the above aims, seven projects have been established as a result of the 

VRN Programme: 
 

83



 
 

i. VRN Development Project: This project involves the establishment of the 
VRN central team and setting-up the programme management 
arrangements including the VRN Programme Board and sub-groups. 

ii. Leadership and Vision Project: The establishment of the VRN provides 
an opportunity to articulate and promote consistent and evidence-based 
strategic messaging around violence, its causes and ‘what works’ in 
relation to prevention. The VRN is adopting a distributed model of 
leadership, building a group of agency and community champions to 
support the reach of the VRN, share key messages, build commitment and 
strengthen connections. The VRN is also exploring how the closer strategic 
alignment of related-initiatives can also be achieved. Ultimately, shifting 
current responses to violence towards more evidence-based, integrated 
prevention activity will require system leadership. 

iii. Service Mapping Project: This project has been included to ensure that 
we understand the existing partnerships, services and interventions across 
LLR (including community assets) that could potentially have a positive 
impact on violence prevention. Alongside the identification of duplication 
and gaps in provision, this project also seeks to understand the extent to 
which these services are operating as a whole system. 

iv. Analysis and Evaluation: This project is tasked with developing a more 
detailed understanding of the problem of youth violence across LLR 
through the gathering and analysis of a range of data from multiple sources 
and building the capability for on-going monitoring and analysis. This 
includes ensuring the supporting information sharing architecture is in 
place.  The project will also design and monitor a performance and 
evaluation framework for the VRN and related-projects. 

v. Service Design and Implementation Project: This project has been 
established to co-ordinate, develop and test services related to violence 
reduction and prevention. An important function of the VRN will be to 
generate and cascade knowledge in relation to ‘what works’ in violence 
prevention. This will be used to support partners and communities to 
develop their violence prevention ‘offer’ largely through re-shaping existing 
services. This Project also oversees the 20% spend on interventions 
through testing new services and expanding existing services. ‘Services’ 
also include developing initiatives that build community capacity.  

vi. Campaigns Project: Alongside the development of the VRN 
Communications Strategy and supporting plan, this project is currently 
focusing on promoting and building the Network itself through attendance 
at partnership boards, developing a ‘champions’ group from key agencies 
and identifying and having ‘community conversations’ with key communities 
across LLR, particularly those that are most effected by violence. A series 
of Network events will be held throughout the next five months to 
strengthen connections, promote key messages, share knowledge and 
enable involvement in understanding the problem and generating solutions. 
This project will also oversee the design and delivery of community and 
workforce campaigns. In relation to the latter, funding has been set aside to 
contribute to multi-agency workforce development in relation to Adverse 
Childhood Experiences and Trauma-Informed practice.  

vii. Policy Integration Project: The focus of this project is on both national 
and local policy and analysis of how policies may be impeding (or 
supporting) violence prevention. Initially, a rapid review will be undertaken 
by the end of December 2019 to increase the VRN’s understanding of the 

84



 
 

links between policy and violence prevention by drawing on national and 
international experience. Local policy issues will be monitored throughout 
the programme and further analysis undertaken if agreed by the VRN 
Programme Board and SPB. Any national policy issues will be raised 
through the national VRN network. It is anticipated that a significant area of 
work for the VRN will be supporting partners to mobilise for the new serious 
violence duty. 

 
5.13. The VRN recognises the wide-ranging activity already underway in relation to 

violence prevention and a key ambition is to shape, adapt and improve connections 
between policy, partnerships, services and initiatives so that they operate more as a 
violence prevention system. Given that violent behaviour has a long gestation 
period and areas such as parenting and education are central to primary 
prevention, the VRN is taking a life-course approach and is keen to engage with all 
relevant agencies and communities in its work.  
 

5.14. This is entirely consistent with the methodology of the Prevention Board, which is 
still in the throes of development but is likely to include much the same membership 
as the VRN with meetings running back to back. Essentially the Prevention Board 
will focus on a range of harmful behaviours, one of which is violence. In that sense 
we anticipate that the Prevention Board will ultimately oversee the work of the VRN: 
but in the short term we will run them side by side to ensure that we meet the 
requirements of the Home Office.  
 

5.15. Although the Prevention Board has only just received approval from SPB, two 
developments already sit underneath it: the People Zones’ development is already 
underway and operating in local communities with a clear focus on the public health 
model; a new development is an emerging inter-agency strategy focussing on the 
behaviours arising from mental ill-health/distress that drive demand for emergency 
services. This has been developed over a series of inter-agency workshops with the 
aim of developing a shared commitment to a strategy focussed on widening access 
to a range of community based and community-led services.  

 
Consultation/Patient and Public Involvement 
 

6. Community involvement and empowerment is central to the VRN’s aims and significant 
work is planned to ensure community voice and action is integrated into all elements of 
the programme via the Community Panel mentioned above. One of the roles within the 
VRN is focussed on developing community engagement and involvement in the 
programme. The VRN is committed to ensuring those most affected by violence, 
including young people, are empowered to play a central role.  
 

Resource Implications 
 

7. The VRN funding of £880,000 was provided through the Home Office Serious Violence 
grant which is to be allocated by the 31 March 2020. Partners are asked to contribute 
through identifying ‘champions’ to join the VRN Development Group which currently 
meets on a bi-monthly basis. Requests for information to inform the mapping and data 
analysis work will also be made. As the VRN develops, partners will also be invited to 
attend relevant Network events and training days which will require release from 
operational duties in many cases. All of this work is funded through existing budgets 
 

85



 
 

 
Background papers 
 

8. None  
 

Appendix 
 

9. Report to the Strategic Partnership Board – Prevention Board – 5 November 2019. 
 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Prevention Board 
 
Paul Hindson 
CEO, Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
Email: Paul.Hindson@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 
 
VRN 
 
Grace Strong, Strategic Director, VRN 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 
Email: Grace.Strong@leics.pcc.pnn.gov.uk 
Telephone: 07814 616123   
  
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

10. Equality Impact Assessments are being completed in relation to the VRN’s work.  
 

Risk Assessment 
 

11. The VRN maintains a risk register which can be provided to Board members if required.  
 

86



 
 

Appendix : Details of Prevention Board 
 

POLICE & CRIME 
COMMISSIONER FOR 

LEICESTERSHIRE 
 

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP 
BOARD  

 
 
Report of OFFICE OF POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONER 

 
Subject PREVENTION BOARD 

 
Date TUESDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2019 

 
Author :  
 

PAUL HINDSON, OPCC CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1. This report proposes the establishment of a Prevention Board to replace the existing People 

and Place Board as a sub-group of the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB).   
 

2. Context 
 

2.1. The People and Place Board was established as one of the original sub-groups of the SPB 
under the existing terms of reference. The People and Place Board established the People 
Zones initiative and oversaw its implementation. The terms of reference of the People and 
Place Board included a focus on “preventing” harmful behaviours and this was part of the 
rationale for the People Zones.  
 

2.2. Since then two further developments have led to the proposals contained in this paper. The 
first is the establishment of the Violence Reduction Network (VRN), which is built around the 
Public Health Model, following on from the success of applying that methodology in Scotland. 
The second is the development of an operating model for People Zones, which argues that 
the original model was too broad and requires simplification in order to maximise agency and 
community commitment. The original methodology for People Zones was entirely consistent 
with the Public Health Model, albeit not clearly articulated in that format 
 

3. The Existing Landscape 
 

3.1. As mentioned above, the Public Health Model is central to the development of the VRN. It is 
a simple model that is easily understood and accepted by practitioners across the public 
service sector and could provide a focal point for the development of shared strategies. 
 

3.2. In developing the VRN the team has undertaken a preliminary analysis of the existing 
delivery arrangements across Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) that are relevant 
to the behaviour of violence and in line with the Public Health Model. This assessment has 
highlighted some strengths and weaknesses in the existing service delivery arrangements. 
These are highlighted in the diagram below. 
 

PAPER MARKED 

F
X 

87



 
 

 
 
3.3. In terms of investment, it could be argued that the triangle is currently upside down, with 

most of the investment going into services that have very limited prospect of achieving long 
term changes in patterns of harmful behaviour across the communities of LLR. This is 
depicted in the diagram below. 

 

 
 
3.4. The emerging hypothesis is that our capacity to “prevent” harmful behaviours over the longer 

term is inhibited by the challenge of building the lower tiers of the Public Health Model to the 
degree that is required. On top of this “prevention” in the higher tiers is limited because the 
majority of services tend to have a greater focus on “controlling” behaviour rather than 
enabling the rehabilitation of those who exhibit the behaviour and a tendency to focus on 
individual “perpetrators” rather than considering the wider network of individuals they interact 
with and influence.  
 

3.5. Indeed austerity may have exacerbated the problem from a public health perspective, as the 
higher tiers tend to be statutory and crisis based: the core elements of demand; whilst the 
lower tiers tend to be non-statutory and longer term. In periods of retrenchment it is inevitable 
that services will be more narrowly focussed and those that are not statutorily required and 
do not satisfy immediate demand will experience higher levels of disinvestment. The analysis 

88



 
 

suggests that this approach merely drives more and more short term crisis based services, 
whilst doing nothing to stem the long term flow of demand.  
 

3.6. The preliminary VRN service mapping exercise suggests that services at tiers 2 and 3 
currently have a very limited focus on prevention. The services most likely to respond to 
violent behaviour in adults are police, EMAS, A&E, probation and prison. The police 
response is not designed to change the behaviour of the individual perpetrator and police 
training does not focus on rehabilitative interventions. Leicestershire Police has invested in 
services such as Braunstone Blues and People Zones and has developed a Serious Harm 
Reduction Unit to focus on longer term initiatives as well as building its neighbourhood 
policing capability. But the response to individual incidents is largely to apprehend and 
convict the perpetrator.  
 

3.7. EMAS and A&E tend to respond to the “victims” of violent behaviour rather than the 
perpetrators, albeit the distinction between victim and perpetrator can become blurred in 
some types of violent incident. The prison service clearly works directly with perpetrators of 
violence and delivers some services to impact on the attitudes underpinning the behaviour. 
Nevertheless, the recent crisis of mushrooming violence within our prisons does not suggest 
that violence prevention will blossom in that environment. Indeed the consultant supporting 
the development of the VRN described prison as reinforcing the very trauma that underpins 
violent behaviour.  
 

3.8. The probation service probably has the largest focus on rehabilitation of all these services, 
but has undergone major organisational upheavals in recent years, with more to come. Even 
then that service is arguably more focussed on controlling the behaviour of those who pose a 
threat to public protection rather than investing in their long term rehabilitation. It clearly does 
not routinely work across the network of individuals who are influenced by perpetrators and 
therefore obviously cannot impact on the inter-generational nature of these behaviour 
patterns.  
 

3.9. The response from the Youth Offending Service for younger perpetrators of violence may 
provide a more promising focus on rehabilitation as well as a willingness to engage with the 
wider network of individuals who influence and are influenced by the individual. This 
approach is likely to have a longer term effect, but the truth is that the vast majority of 
perpetrators are in the higher age range.  
 

3.10. The pattern emerging from the early VRN analysis is that the top two tiers of the Public 
Health Model are unlikely to generate long term changes in the pattern of behaviour and the 
bottom two tiers are insufficiently developed to build long term community resilience. There 
are some very promising initiatives in the bottom two tiers, including the development of 
Local Area Co-ordinators in the county, street based youth work, and the generic 
vulnerability checks undertaken by fire officers. Whilst these sorts of initiative will 
undoubtedly have some positive impact, they clearly have not contained the growing levels 
of serious violence as highlighted in the analysis presented to the Board on 6 September 
2019.  
 

4. A Different Perspective on the Public Health Model 
 

4.1. We tend to address harmful behaviours individually as though each one has unique drivers 
and perpetrators and victims. But the reality is that certain communities tend to exhibit 
patterns of multiple deprivation resulting in a myriad of harmful behaviours. Recent analyses 
of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) demonstrate that higher levels of trauma in early 
life are very closely correlated with a range of negative behavioural outcomes. At the same 
time it implies that making an impact on one behaviour, could have a wider impact on other 
harmful behaviours. This generic impact is highlight in the diagram below.  
 

89



 
 

 
4.2. However, the ACE analysis also suggests that patterns of harmful behaviour have a long 

gestation period and are established over many years. Essentially the behaviour is a 
“symptom” of long term deprivation. This makes the behaviours very difficult to change once 
they are entrenched. All the indications are that investing early in building resilience to the 
causes of the behaviour in the first place is a more profitable route to pursue; therefore 
investing in tiers 1 and 2 of the public health model.  
 

4.3. Investing in the lower tiers of the Public Health Model has the added advantage of being non-
behaviour specific. If we build resilience to one form of harmful behaviour we are likely to 
build resilience to them all. In this sense the Public Health Model is more like a Toblerone 
than a triangle as depicted in the diagram below.  
 

90



 
 

 
 
4.4. On this basis we could establish a model wherein the lower tiers are seen as generic and 

developed collaboratively across public service agencies, whereas the higher two tiers are 
targeted more specifically at individual behaviours as indicated in the diagram above. This 
approach can build upon existing initiatives across LLR, some of which have been mapped 
by the VRN work. The approach would also enable a much higher level of collaboration 
across public services than has been possible to achieve hitherto.  
 

4.5. At present, insofar as we develop initiatives at the lower tiers, some of them are developed to 
address specific behaviours rather than building wider resilience in our young people and 
local communities. For instance many violence reduction units outside of LLR are targeting 
schools and local communities to promote messages in relation to knife crime/serious 
violence. If we adopted this behaviour-specific approach for each of the harmful behaviours 
we want to focus on, the schools and communities would be inundated and there would be a 
risk of conflicting messages resulting in confusion. The proposed approach is more generic, 
developing some core messages to promote and build a wider level of overarching resilience 
to a range of harmful behaviours. Reassuringly this is the approach adopted by 
Leicestershire County Council via their successful Youth Endowment Award programme to 
be delivered in schools by Barnardo’s.  
 

4.6. The diagram below is drawn from the preliminary VRN mapping and gives an indication of 
the sorts of existing resources that are available in local communities at tiers 1 and 2 (no 
distinction is made between those tiers in the diagram). Clearly the community itself is the 
source of many other resources to enable resilience building. 
 

91



 
 

 
 
5. A Worked Example – Mental Health 

 
5.1. The proposed methodology has already been tested via some work already undertaken in 

the area of mental health. Mental health issues are referred to in the Police and Crime Plan 
as an area of vulnerability that generates very reactive work for the police and other 
agencies, without delivering long term benefits.  
 

5.2. The Proactive Vulnerability Engagement Team (PAVE) was established via the OPCC’s 
Strategic Partnership Development Fund (SPDF) to develop an enhanced response to 
frequent callers to emergency services with complex issues of vulnerability. As part of the 
recent review the scope and remit of PAVE was considered alongside the services offered by 
Leicestershire Partnership Trust and by Primary Care services and other organisations to 
support this cohort of people. What has emerged is a proposed holistic approach to these 
individuals that draws on services and support at all levels of the Public Health Model. The 
proposals will be considered at a special leaders’ event on 25 November and is described 
more fully in a separate paper to this meeting of the SPB.  
 

5.3. However, the key ingredients are that a key behaviour was identified – low level mental 
health generated demand for emergency services; a collaborative analysis was undertaken 
and an inter-agency strategy developed to address the behaviour. This is the approach 
proposed for other behaviours that have yet to be defined.  
 

6. Alignment with Health 
 

6.1. The worked example described above, and other complex behaviours that the Prevention 
Board is likely to address, are bound to have a health component. The solutions identified 
will only be effective if they align with the strategic initiatives of the Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs) and local health providers.  
 

6.2. In order to promote this alignment it is proposed to take this paper to the Health and Well-
Being Boards that cover Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR) and to align work 
between the SPB sponsored Prevention Board and the Unified Prevention Board that is 
building a similar health-based preventive approach across Leicestershire, and any 
equivalent forums in other jurisdictions across LLR.  
 

6.3. Taking this a step further there will always be considerable overlap between the issues 
addressed by SPB and those taken forward by Health and Well-Being Boards. Bearing this in 

92



 
 

mind it is proposed to establish an annual joint forum, wherein overlapping issues are 
identified and considered. The proposal for this will be developed more fully and brought 
before a future meeting of the SPB.  
 

7. Alignment with Place 
 

7.1. The diagram in 4.6 above demonstrates that there is already quite a lot of activity going on in 
tiers 0 and 1, but this varies considerably by place. Many of the programmes referred to in 
4.6 are commissioned by Leicestershire County Council, which may partly reflect the 
knowledge base of the person who did the preliminary VRN mapping – but it may also 
demonstrate that there is variation in provision between upper tier local authority areas. 
Clearly there may also be variations between lower tier authorities, but that is more difficult to 
map at this stage because of the resources available for mapping and because of the 
overlapping provision offered by Leicestershire.  
 

7.2. Nevertheless the Board does need to understand the variations in provision by place in order 
to know where to target services and stimulate community resources, including the 
deployment of a revised People Zone methodology. The proposal is for the Board to develop 
its own expectations of what is required at tiers 0 and 1 in order to facilitate the prevention of 
harmful behaviours, and to put in place arrangements to review and monitor this. In the first 
place the review and monitoring can be undertaken at upper tier level.  
 

8. Alignment with the VRN 
 

8.1. The methodology described for the Prevention Board entirely accords with the approach 
adopted by the VRN. In essence violence is one of the harmful behaviours that the 
Prevention Board will be concerned with. The work that the VRN undertakes to enhance tiers 
1 and 2 of the Public Health Model across LLR will provide immediate benefits to the VRN 
and any work that the Prevention Board commissions to address other harmful behaviours 
will have similar synergistic effects.  
 

8.2. Bearing this in mind the VRN and the Prevention Board need to work particularly closely and 
need to align their programmes. Wherever possible agencies will ensure that membership of 
the Boards is held in the same person. Over the longer term it may be that the two Boards 
are brought together as one, but in the short term, the funding requires the VRN to be a 
separate Board and its pioneering development probably requires dedicated commitment 
from each agency. This will be reviewed over time.  
 

9. Implications for the Prevention Board 
 

9.1. Translating this into the development of a multi-agency Prevention Board the remit of that 
Board would be to do the following: 
 

9.2. Identify the harmful behaviours that it chooses to prioritise. This exercise will be undertaken 
in collaboration with initiatives in the health world, such as via the Unified Prevention Board 
and the Health and Well-Being Boards as well as taking account of the emerging 
developments in Primary Care Networks.  
 

9.3. Review existing preventive work undertaken at Tiers 2 and 3 for each of the prioritised 
harmful behaviours, leading to recommendations for change and the preparation of a multi-
agency strategy to enhance the achievement of preventive initiatives.  
 

9.4. Build a self-assessment toolkit for individual agencies to enhance the quality of their work on 
prevention. This will include the testing of the toolkit with individual agencies to ensure its 
efficacy.  
 

93



 
 

9.5. Map and co-ordinate initiatives to build Tiers 1 and 2 of the Public Health Model. This will be 
done across LLR identifying gaps either geographically or in specific elements of the 
preventive model, with an emphasis on generic initiatives that are not specific to individual 
behaviours. .  
 

9.6. Identify specific geographical communities where resilience is particularly low and undertake 
work to enhance the resilience of those communities using the revised methodology for 
People Zones, which is attached at Annex B.  
 

9.7. This approach will complement the work being undertaken by the Violence Reduction 
Network, which is currently engaged in each of the activities identified above, albeit focussed 
on serious violence.  
 

9.8. A proposed Terms of Reference for the Prevention Board is attached at Annex A.  
 

10. Recommendation  
 

10.1. The Board is asked to agree to the establishment of the Prevention Board to replace the 
People and Place Board, in line with the Terms of Reference contained in Annex A. 
 

 

94



 
 

Annex A: Terms of Reference for the Prevention Board 
 

The Prevention Board: Terms of Reference  
 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1. The primary purpose of the Prevention Board is to develop strategies to prevent harmful 

behaviours by deploying the Public Health Model.  
 

1.2. The Public Health Model adopted by the Prevention Board is presented in the diagram 
below 

 

 
1.3. Harmful behaviours are defined as any behaviour which undermines the safety and well-

being of the whole community of LLR or of specific communities within LLR. There is also 
an expectation that the harmful behaviours to be addressed by the Prevention Board will 
demonstrate high levels of complexity, requiring inputs from a range of agencies. Harmful 
behaviours which fall within the remit of single agency would not normally be addressed by 
the Prevention Board. 
 

1.4. However, the Board will define the behaviour it is addressing as specifically as possible. 
For instance, crime is a behaviour, but it is not a single behaviour: it takes myriad different 
forms requiring a multiplicity of responses. However, domestic violence is a sub-group of 
crime, enabling more detailed analysis of the patterns and causes in order to develop 
effective preventive strategies. More specifically the Board could focus on specific types of 
domestic violence, or even domestic violence within specific communities.  
 

1.5. Whatever behaviours the Prevention Board chooses to address, its aim is to minimise the 
expression of each behaviour, albeit recognising that the positive changes may be realised 
over a long time period. 
 

2. Approach 
 

2.1. As mentioned above, the Prevention Board will deploy the Public Health Model in 
addressing the targeted behaviours. More specifically this means the following: 
 

2.2. A recognition that the targeted behaviour is usually a symptom of more long term causes 
and that the aim of the Board is to understand and address the long term causes, whilst 

95



 
 

also deploying strategies to minimise the expression of the behaviour in the short term.  
 

2.3. In order to understand the causes the Board will have to analyse the behaviour in detail and 
draw conclusions from the data. This requires the Board to have an analytical capability at 
its disposal and it is assumed that each agency will contribute its own data to achieve that 
analysis.  
 

2.4. In order to identify the targeted behaviours, the Board will maintain an issues log, which all 
members will contribute to. This will record the behaviours that members consider cause 
the most significant harm to the community (or specific communities) of LLR. The issues in 
the log will be reviewed in order to prioritise the targeted behaviours.  
 

2.5. The key output of each targeted behaviour will be an inter-agency strategy to minimise the 
future expression of the behaviour. As a minimum the strategy will identify the required 
inputs at each tier of the Public Health Model, specifying any particular communities 
(geographic or non-geographic) where additional inputs are required.  
 

2.6. The strategy will also identify any policy enablers that can be introduced and the anticipated 
alignment with other local and national strategies. The strategy will also clarify how it will 
monitor the behaviour over time.  
 

2.7. Insofar as the strategy requires significant deployment of multi-agency resource and/or 
significant changes in multi-agency policy then the strategy will reported to the SPB for 
approval and may be monitored and reported at SPB level. 
 

2.8. The Board may choose to develop enablers in order to achieve generic reductions in 
harmful behaviours, without focussing on a specific behaviour as described above. For 
instance, the Board may choose to invest in the development of community leadership 
skills, recognising that community leadership will facilitate the achievement of the Public 
Health Model.  
 

2.9. Community leadership will also facilitate the sort of local intelligence that will enable the 
Board to focus on behaviours that are relevant to local communities. In this respect it would 
be helpful to have input from relevant community leaders on the Board.  
 

2.10. Similarly the Board may recognise that its success is highly dependent on the achievement 
of a multi-agency data analytical capability, supported by effective data sharing 
arrangements. This may be difficult to achieve without investment. 
 

2.11. Bearing in mind the potential for investment, the Board may also choose to develop a 
capability for accessing funding opportunities.  
 

2.12. Finally, the Board will also require a horizon scanning capability in order to be aware of key 
developments in effective practice, new initiatives at national or local level, national and 
local strategies and patterns of change in harmful behaviours at a national and local level.  
 

3. Schedule  
 

3.1. The Board’s initial schedule of development will be: 
 

3.2. Establish membership and meeting arrangements 
 

3.3. Establish processes for collecting and monitoring issues 
 

3.4. Agree minimum dataset for monitoring patterns of harmful behaviour, this will include the 
reporting of issues from local communities 
 

96



 
 

3.5. Agree arrangements for horizon scanning 
 

3.6. Identify harmful behaviours to focus on 
 

3.7. Analyse and develop multi agency strategies for harmful behaviour(s) 
 

3.8. Monitor and review ongoing patterns of harmful behaviour 
 

4. Membership 
 

4.1. Upper Tier Local Authorities 
 
4.1.1. Public Health 
4.1.2. Social Care 

 
4.2. Police – strategic lead for Prevention/Neighbourhood Policing 

 
4.3. OPCC – chief executive 

 
4.4. Lower Tier Local Authorities – strategic lead for community safety 

 
4.5. Representative from Public Health England 

 
4.6. Representative from Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 
4.7. Representative from University Hospitals Leicester 

 
4.8. Representative from Leicestershire Partnerships Trust 

 
4.9. Representative from EMAS 

 
The representatives from health will ensure that the work of the Prevention Board is 
informed by developments within each of the organisations described above, as well as the 
Health & Well-Being Boards across LLR and the Unified Prevention Board in Leicestershire. 
Representatives will also be familiar with the development of Primary Care Networks and 
the Mental Health Partnership Delivery Programme Board. Representatives will also ensure 
that the work of those organisations and partnerships is informed by the work of the 
Prevention Board. 
 

4.10. Fire – strategic lead for community safety 
 

4.11. Probation – strategic lead for community safety 
 

4.12. VCSE representative(s) 
 

4.13. Academic representative(s) 
 

4.14. Community leaders 
 

4.15. Academic bodies 

97



 
 

Annex B: Summary of Revised Operating Model for People Zones 
 
Changes to People Zone Methodology 
 
1. Background  

 
1.1. The People Zones’ methodology was launched in 2018 to support the work of the SPB. It 

has operated in three communities across LLR. 
 

1.2. An evaluation is currently taking place and will be reported back to the Prevention Board, if 
the SPB agrees to establish it. An evaluation methodology has been prepared by 
Loughborough University.  
 

1.3. A revised operating model has been developed by an independent body (Process 
Evolution) drawing on the feedback from participants. However, the revised model was 
developed prior to introduction of the Violence Reduction Network and the broad 
acceptance of the Public Health Model as the approach to adopt.  
 

2. Learning  
 

2.1. The concept of the People Zones has been wholly supported and still aligns very well with 
the key strategic drivers around which it was established.  
 

2.2. Community leadership has been strong in two of the three People Zones and the initiative 
has had a positive impact in embedding and enhancing that leadership. 
 

2.3. The initiative has stimulated activities at the local level including the ability to leverage 
funding in support of work in schools, drug treatment and other local services.  
 

2.4. The initiative has stimulated commitment from the sporting bodies across LLR, with a range 
of sporting activities undertaken in each zone to engage young people.  
 

2.5. The initiative has had a positive impact in promoting more collaborative working across 
agencies at the PZ level. 
 

2.6. The initiative has built a creative relationship with the Community Payback scheme 
delivered by the Community Rehabilitation Company, wherein local people/agencies can 
identify sought after environmental improvements that can be addressed by Community 
Payback.  
 

2.7. Despite these and other positive benefits there are areas that require further development 
as follows: 
 

2.8. The People Zone initiative was intended to be cost neutral. This has been hard to realise in 
practice and has put pressure on three organisations in particular to maintain the work: the 
OPCC; the relevant local authorities; and the police. From the perspective of the OPCC 
three individuals within the office have taken responsibility for delivering the OPCC 
commitment to each PZ, on top of their other duties. This has been very difficult to sustain 
for a small organisation, particularly as staffing changes and new commitments, such as the 
VRN, have occurred.  
 

2.9. The methodology for defining the target behaviour has been unclear and the target 
behaviours have arguably been too broad. This reflects the fact that the particular areas 
were chosen because of the high levels of multiple deprivation that were evident in those 
communities. Bearing this in mind it has been difficult to focus on a single behaviour as 
there are so many issues to address, but without focussing on a single behaviour it is hard 

98



 
 

to demonstrate progress.  
 

2.10. Although some agencies have made a strong commitment to the approach, others have 
more reserved, leaving gaps in the effective deployment of services.  
 

2.11. Community leadership has been very limited in one of the PZs and is still developing in the 
others. Community leadership is clearly a key element of the model, but requires greater 
stimulation at the start of a PZ in order to be effective.  
 

3. Proposed Developments 
 

3.1. The fundamental proposal is that the PZ methodology is enhanced to provide a tool for the 
Prevention Board to deploy in particular geographic communities (at present the PZ 
methodology is not adapted for non-geographic communities, although this could be a 
future development) in line with the Prevention Board approach described above. 
Specifically this means that the Board will analyse a harmful behaviour and in doing so will 
identify any particular geographic communities wherein the harmful behaviour is especially 
prevalent. As part of its strategy for addressing the behaviour the Board will commission a 
PZ in a specified community or communities.  
 

3.2. In order to do this the current revision of the operating model will be completed to achieve 
the following: 
 

3.3. A more robust process for agreeing agency and community commitment at the outset of 
establishing a PZ, with the expectation that the PZ will only go ahead once the commitment 
is achieved.  
 

3.4. A more robust process for defining roles within the PZ, particularly focussing on a lead role 
for agencies, a lead role for the community and a co-ordinator role. The expectation is that a 
co-ordinator will be a funded position.  
 

3.5. The development of a practical toolkit that can be used by community leaders and agencies 
at the local level. This is currently underway, building on the initial toolkit that was prepared.  
 

3.6. Adoption of the Public Health Model as part of the operating model. This will enable the 
local delivery team to focus on the management and rehabilitation of individuals exhibiting a 
very specific harmful behaviour at the top end of the model, whilst building more generic 
community resilience at the bottom end.  

 

99



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE UNIFIED PREVENTION BOARD 
 

UNIFIED PREVENTION BOARD UPDATE 
 
Purpose of report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to update the Board on the work of the Unified 
Prevention Board (UPB) in delivering the prevention offer in conjunction with 
partners across Leicestershire, including developing pathways establishing how 
work flows into the activities of each partner organisation. 

 
Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

2. The UPB is a sub-group of the Leicestershire Health and Wellbeing Board. It 
oversees the development and delivery of prevention activities underpinning the 
health and wellbeing strategy for Leicestershire and ensuring that the objectives of 
the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) prevention work stream 
are closely aligned with the Leicestershire prevention strategy and are jointly 
delivered locally as needed across Leicestershire. 

 
Recommendation 
 

3. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the contents of the report. 
 
Background 
 

4. This report is for information to advise the Board of the current and future work 
programme of the UPB. The UPB continues to focus on: 

 

 Joined up communications 

 Healthy workforce = Healthy Leicestershire 

 Lessons learned from key integration programmes including ensuring a good join 
up between the existing social prescribing system and social prescribing link 
workers within Primary Care Networks and in developing links between the 
prevention offer and the work of the Violence Reduction Network. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101 Agenda Item 12



 
 

Joined up communications 
 
Mental Health Comms Campaign  
 

5. A mental health communications toolkit has been designed to help effectively 
communicate key messages around mental health to internal and external 
stakeholders.  Evidence suggests there are five steps we can all take to improve 
our mental health, enabling people to feel happier, more positive and to get the 
most from life. 

 
6. There was increased social media use from partner organisations to coincide with 

World Mental Health Day on October 10th.  Public Health England have launched 
their “Every Mind Matters” campaign in October and is targeted around self care. 
This is supported by NHS England.  Partner organisations have promoted the 
campaign via social media. 

 
 PCC Violence Reduction Network 
 

7. The UPB have received a presentation on the scope of the violence reduction 
network and the emerging model of knife crime reduction. From this there will be 
regular updates to the board and how this programme of work is being delivered 
through People Zones.  Initial discussions have been regarding how the prevention 
services within the scope of the UPB, can work with the Violence Reduction 
Network (VRN).  Specific public health support to the VRN has been provided by 
Joshna Mavji (LCC Public Health Consultant). With Joshna now on adoption leave, 
an arrangement has been reached with Public Health England for two consultants, 
Jasmine Murphy and Susanne Howes, to provide support.  The Police rep on the 
UPB, Sian Walls, will provide regular updates to UPB on the work of the VRN. 

 
Social Prescribing and Primary Care Networks 
 

8. The PCN presentation and discussion included how the Public Health Local Area 
Coordination team is creating a communities of practice for Social Prescribers to 
receive support and training for their new roles and included how these will link to 
the social prescribing offer 

  
Wellbeing at Work  
 

9. Wellbeing at work was launched in July 2018. Funding was received from local 
authorities and public health, with central co-ordination from Leicester-Shire and 
Rutland Sport (LRS). 

 
10. It was developed to support local workplaces to improve health and wellbeing of 

staff and to help reduce absenteeism and presentism, improve productivity and 
better health outcomes etc.  So far 41 workplaces have fully completed the 
Workplace Health Needs Assessment (WHNA), that gives an understanding of the 
priorities for health within each workplace. This equates to 5,400 individual 
responses. Aggregated data for physical activity, smoking, alcohol, nutrition, stress 
and sleep. Currently building case studies to use for promotional purposes. 

 

102



 
 

11. The workplace health project include attending the Leicester Business Festival 
(28th Oct-8th Nov), a workplace hockey completion (31st Oct) and a social media 
campaign featuring case studies running from Sept-Nov. 

 
Officers to Contact 
 
Mike Sandys 
Director of Public Health 
Email: mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0116 305 4239 
 
Jane Toman 
Chief Executive, Blaby District Council 
Email: jane.toman@blaby.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0116 272 7576 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

12. The work being undertaken would have a positive impact on the health of the 
population. 

 
Partnership Working and Associated Issues 
 

13. The recommendations within this report focus on actions across agencies that will 
improve the population’s health. The basis of the report is improving population 
health in partnership with other key agencies. 

103



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28th NOVEMBER 2019  
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY 
SERVICES 

 
LEICESTERSHIRE CHILDREN AND FAMILIES PARTNERSHIP 

PLAN 2018 – 2021: PROGRESS UPDATE 
 

Purpose of the report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present a progress update on the Children and 
Families Partnership Plan 2018-21. 
  

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 

2. The Children and Families Partnership plan is aligned to the Leicestershire County 
Council Strategic Plan and focuses on the added value of approaching strategic 
priorities across the partnership to ensure consistent communication and service 
delivery to children and families. 

 
Recommendation 
 

3. The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the report.  
 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
4. In November 2016 the Health and Wellbeing Board approved the terms of reference 

for a Children and Families Partnership to replace the Supporting Leicestershire 
Families Executive as a subgroup of the Health and Wellbeing Board. The expanded 
remit included oversight of how the priorities for children and families as set out in the 
draft Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, are delivered.  

 
5. In May 2018 the Health and Wellbeing Board approved the Children and Families 

Partnership Plan for 2018 – 21 and requested that it received regular progress 
updates. 

 
Background 
 

6. The Children and Families Partnership Plan is a strategic document which sets out 
the shared vision for children, young people and their families and the priority 
outcomes that need to be improved. The Plan is not intended to be a detailed 
description of the individual work of each partner, but rather a summary of key areas 
of work that are best delivered together to have the biggest impact on the lives of 
children and young people. 

 
7. The Partnership have adopted the five supporting outcomes of the Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy relating to children and young people as the priority areas 
for the Plan. The five priorities are: 

 

105 Agenda Item 13



 

i. Ensure the best start in life– by developing an integrated early years pathway which 
ensures needs are assessed to enable appropriate interventions are offered and the 
development of a communication strategy to promote the 1001 critical days; 
 

ii. Keep children safe and free from harm – by developing and embedding an integrated 
model of services to prevent harm to children and young people and make children 
safe by raising awareness of universal safety messages; 

 
iii. Support children and families to be resilient - by developing an integrated approach 

to family resilience and self-sufficiency, provide joined up information and guidance 
to enable families to be self-sufficient and navigate services and support families to 
progress towards work; 

 
iv. Ensure vulnerable families receive personalised, integrated care and support – by 

providing integrated, outcome-based, high quality, cost-effective provision and 
developing a post-16 multi-agency delivery model; 

 
v. Enable children to have good physical and mental health - by developing a whole 

system approach based on ‘Making obesity everyone’s business’ and developing a 
partnership approach to emotional and mental wellbeing; 

 
Progress to date 
 

8. Priority leads are working with partners and other key stakeholders to deliver the 
action plans agreed against each outcome. Key progress from May to November 
2019 includes; 

 
Priority 1 - Ensure the best start in life 
 

 Launch of a “Graduated Approach” in September 2019 to assist children at risk of 
delay being identified early and referred to appropriate services for support. The 
approach includes an Advice Line, support visits from Area SENCOs, half-termly 
drop-ins for providers to talk through concerns with a range of professionals and an 
online toolkit for schools and preschools; 
 

 Launch of a leaflet targeted at parents to promote awareness and understanding of 
1001 Critical Days key messages. The leaflet will be available at all primary schools 
and will be distributed to expectant and new parents through key health contacts; 
 

 Launch of a School Readiness online toolkit for early years professionals    
 

 
Priority 2 - Keep children safe and free from harm 
 

 The appointment of Detective Inspector Helen Schofield as Strategic Lead for Child 
Criminal Exploitation (CCE) for Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland (LLR).  Helen 
will act as co-ordinator across the partnership, working with operational leads 
across LLR to develop a joint strategy and delivery plan in response to CCE. 

 
 
 
 

106



 

Priority 3 - Support children and families to be resilient 
 

 Work with secondary schools and the Local Enterprise Partnership to promote take 
up of the Enterprise Adviser Programme to support the delivery of effective careers 
guidance. The majority of secondary schools and colleges are now working with an 
Adviser. 
 

Priority 4 - Ensure vulnerable families receive personalised, integrated care and support 
 

 Establishment of a Joint Solutions Panel to review joint funding arrangements.  

 Remodelling of the LCC Inclusion Service and launch of a new Inclusion Pathway in 
September 2019. The Pathway includes early years, primary and secondary advice 
surgeries (Inclusion Forums) across the county  

 Approval of a multi-agency Housing Protocol for 16 and 17 year olds at risk of 
homelessness in November 2019 

 Recruitment of 9 care leaver apprentices to LCC as part of the offer to care leavers 
 

Priority 5 - Enable children to have good physical and mental health 
 

 Funding secured to commission development of a face to face & online Make Every 
Contact Count PLUS training module on maternal obesity 

 Maternal Obesity Resources sub group is developing suitable resources for 
practitioners to use with service users to discuss healthy weight before/ during & 
post pregnancy 

 The first year of the Active Travel to and from school ‘Choose How You Move’ 
programme has been successfully completed 

 Roll-out of the Active Families project to all 7 county localities in Leicestershire 
following successful pilot phase in two districts. Initial data and qualitative feedback 
is positive. The operational and management groups are collating key learning from 
the programme to help shape future work.   

 

 A multi-agency event around “First Steps to a Trauma Informed Approach to Address 
Adverse Childhood Experiences” held on 21 May 2019.  

 Liaison with Better Start in Blackpool (a Lottery funded programme focused on 
promoting good early child development that uses a trauma informed approach to 
address ACEs) to learn the lessons from this programme. 

 Discussions with the Violence Reduction Unit to identify how we can work in 
partnership and to explore funding opportunities especially in relation to workforce 
development.  

 A strategic leader’s workshop was held on 19 September 2019. The focus of the 
workshop was to begin the development of a shared vision and to agree how a 
trauma informed approach could be progressed across Leicestershire.  
 

Youth Campaign Group 
 

 A Youth Campaign Group (YGC) was developed in November 2018 to involve 
young people in developing and delivering the Leicestershire Children and Families 
Partnership Plan. Their focus is undertaking campaign activity aligned to key issues 
identified by county young people through the national Make Your Mark youth 
ballot.  

 

107



 

 Knife crime was identified as the number one issue for 2018/19 and the YCG has 
been working with partners including Mike Kapur, the Lord Lieutenant of 
Leicestershire, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and Public Health 
to discuss knife crime and ideas for campaign activity.  

 

 Members of the YCG have worked with Words Over Weapons (WOW), a Home 
Office-funded project aimed at raising awareness of knife crime. They have gone on 
to become WOW ambassadors and joined other young people to write poems 
about their personal experiences around knife crime. A showcase evening was held 
at the Y Theatre in Leicester to launch a video of the young people reading their 
poems.  

 

 YGC is currently working with Leicester City Football Club’s Community charity to 
produce a video and to run a slogan competition aimed at raising awareness of the 
impact of knife crime. 

 
Communications 
 

 As part of the Partnership communications plan an electronic newsletter has been 
introduced to improve cross-partnership and wider communication on progress 
against the partnership plan and to share other relevant information and updates, 
clearly and consistently. The first issue was released in September 2019.  
 

 A partnership logo has been developed for use on partnership related resources and 
communications have been made available to be used by partners.  

 
 
Future Developments 
 

9.  Work over the next six months will include:- 
 

 Development of a joint CCG/LCC neo-natal pathway to offer contact with Children 
and Family Wellbeing Service and referral to portage home-based teaching 
service if appropriate. 

 Pilot of a “2 to School” programme by LCC Children and Family Wellbeing Service 
and early years providers in Oadby which will include the delivery of workshops 
and interactive displays providing advice and information for parent/carers to 
support their child to be school ready 

 Review of the priority three action plan as it has been identified that actions under 
this priority have now been completed or have now moved into business as usual 

   Adoption of the Trauma Aware System Change (TASC) Model as a framework for 
the development of a trauma aware whole system approach for Leicestershire 
(detailed in a separate paper on the Health and Wellbeing Board’s agenda); 

 Support from the Youth Campaign Group for the programme of activities that will be 
delivered as part of the “Knife Angel” residency at Leicester Cathedral during May 
2020  

 
Background papers 
 
Report to the Health and Wellbeing Board – May 2018 - Leicestershire Children and 
Families Partnership Plan 2018/2021. 
http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5298&Ver=4 

108

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1038&MId=5298&Ver=4


 

 
Officer to Contact 
 
Jane Moore 
Director of Children and Family Services  
Tel: 0116 305 2649 
Email: jane.moore@leics.gov.uk  
 
Liz Perfect 
Head of Service - Commissioning & Planning 
Tel: 0116 305 4814 
Email: liz.perfect@leics.gov.uk 
 
Mala Razak 
Children and Families Partnership Manager 
Tel: 0116 305 8055 
Email: mala.razak@leics.gov.uk  
  
 
Appendix 
 
Leicestershire Children and Families Partnership plan on a page 
 
Relevant Impact Assessments 
 
Equality and Human Rights Implications 
 

10. The Partnership has an interest in ensuring that there are effective arrangements in 
place so that the services provided meet the identified needs of local people. An EHIRA 
assessment has been carried out in relation to the impacts of the Plan. 
 

109

mailto:jane.moore@leics.gov.uk
mailto:liz.perfect@leics.gov.uk
mailto:mala.razak@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



S0
11

0

Leicestershire Children and Families Partnership  
Priorities 2018-2021 

Our shared vision 
Children & young people in Leicestershire are safe and living in families  

where they can achieve their full potential.

2 CROSS-CUTTING THEMES: COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY,  WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

• To develop an integrated 
Early Years Pathway 
to ensure the needs of 
vulnerable children are 
identified

• To develop a shared 
understanding of the 
importance of the First 
1001 Critical Days and 
school readiness

1. 
Ensure the  

best start in life

• To develop and embed 
an integrated model of 
services to prevent harm 
to children and young 
people

• To make children safe 
by raising awareness of 
universal safety messages

2.
Keep children safe  
and free from harm

• To develop an integrated 
approach to family resilience 
and self-sufficiency

• Provide joined up information 
and guidance to enable 
families to be self-sufficient 
and navigate services

• To support families to 
progress towards work 

3.
Support children and 
families to be resilient

• To provide integrated, 
outcome-based, high 
quality, cost-effective 
provision       

• To develop a post-16 
multi-agency delivery 
model

4.
Ensure vulnerable families 

receive personalised,  
integrated care and support

• To develop a whole 
system approach based 
on ‘Making obesity 
everyone’s business’

• To develop a partnership 
approach to emotional 
and mental wellbeing

5.
Enable children to 

have good physical and 
mental health

|   VOICE OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE   |  OUTCOME-BASED PLANNING   |  INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING   |
ENABLERS

111



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD: 28 NOVEMBER 2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 
 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH: 
LEICESTERSHIRE’S HEALTH – PHYSICAL ACTIVITY – MOVING TO A 

WHOLE SYSTEMS APPROACH 
 
Purpose of report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to present the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 

for 2019.  A copy of the full report is appended as Appendix A. 
  

Link to the local Health and Care System 
 
2. Production of the Director of Public Health's (DPH) Annual Report is a statutory duty for 

the Director of Public Health and is an independent report on the health and well being 
of the local population. 

 
Recommendation 
 
3. It is recommended that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 

a) Notes the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report for 2019; 
b) Welcomes the recommendations set out in the report which aim to increase the 

levels of physical activity across Leicestershire through a co-ordinated multi 
partner approach.  

 
Policy Framework and Previous Decisions 

 
4. The report is published annually and is presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board 

as part of the publication process for the report. 

 
Background 

 
5. The purpose of a Director of Public Health’s annual report is to improve the health and 

wellbeing of the people of Leicestershire. This is done by reporting publicly and 
independently on trends and gaps in the health and wellbeing of the population and 
by making recommendations for improvement to a wide range of organisations. 
 

6. One of the roles of the Director of Public Health is to be an independent advocate for 
the health of their population. The Annual Reports are the main way by which 
Directors of Public Health make their conclusions known to the public. 

 

113 Agenda Item 14



 

 
 

 
Summary of the Annual Report 
 
7. This year’s report presents data on physical activity across Leicestershire.  Physical 

inactivity directly contributes to one in six deaths in the UK.  Around a quarter of the 
population are classified as inactive, failing to achieve a minimum of 30 minutes of 
activity a week.  Across Leicestershire, the percentage of physically active adults in 
significantly worse than the national average.  Similarly, the percentage of adults 
walking for travel at least three days a week is significantly worse than the national 
average.  Despite this, excess weight in adults is similar to the national average and 
excess weight in children is significantly better than the national average. 

 
8. A complex set of circumstances have contributed, nationally and internationally, to this 

decline in physical activity.  Changes in social, cultural, and economic trends have 
contributed to people participating in less physical activity such as, manual jobs, 
technology at home and work which encourages sedentary behaviours and over 
reliance on cars and motorised transport. 

 
9. The approach outlined in the report accepts that there is no one solution to address 

such an ingrained problem and that local action to promote healthy weight across the 

life course requires a coordinated collaborative approach across many different 

organisations.  The report identifies seven key components to a successful physical 

activity system: 
 

i. Active Environment 

ii. Active Travel 

iii. Active early years and schools 

iv. Active people and families 

v. Active workplace and workforces 

vi. Active communities 

vii. Physical activity as medicine 

 
10. The report recommends that policy makers and public sector organisations should 

adopt the seven components set out above as the basis of thinking about their 

approach to improving physical activity levels. In doing so they should be underpinned 

by strong systems leadership, active policy and partnerships and research. A summary 

of how each of the seven key components can be delivered is set out below 

 
Active Environment 

 
11. Organisations across Leicestershire need to work towards a future where active deign 

principles are embedded in planning policy and are central to planning decisions 

across Leicestershire.  This will be facilitated by the development of healthy planning 

design guidance, currently being produced, which would ideally be adopted by all 

district councils.  Further work is also needed to promote the use of the County’s green 

assets for physical activity purposes. 

 
 

114



 

 
 

Active travel 
 

12. Public Health will continue to seek opportunities to work closely with local planning 

authorities to increase provision of active travel and high-quality walking infrastructure 

within new developments. Developers will be encouraged to ensure newly built areas 

promote cycling and walking as the preferred means of transport and the adoption of 

20mph limits/zones where appropriate.  The ‘extended workforce’ pilot role of Sport 

England, where a shared post between Sport England and Leicester-Shire and Rutland 

Sport is helping to deliver ‘active design’ strategy locally to meet key strategic 

challenges.  

 
Active early years and schools 

13. Public Health will advocate additional work in pre-school settings and with parents 

generally, to promote ‘active play’ and by encouraging the uptake of the Whole School 

Approach to Physical Activity (WSAPA) programme across all Leicestershire schools. 

All schools working with Sport and Physical Activity Networks in Leicestershire have 

begun working towards taking a Whole School approach”. 

 
Active people and families  
 
14. Leicestershire’s district councils all provide a comprehensive programme of events and 

campaigns throughout the year to increase physical activity, aimed at all ages and 

abilities and at addressing barriers to participation. Lessons learnt from these 

programmes will help Identify and better target opportunities to promote affordable and 

flexible physical activity through culture 

and leisure services. 
 

Active workplaces and workforces 
 

15. Public Health, working jointly with Leicestershire and Rutland Sport, will work with 

employers to encourage a health needs assessment of their workforce and to introduce 

interventions to reduce sedentary time at work and support people as they transition 

into to retirement to continue to be active. 

 
Active communities  
 

16. Active communities sit at the heart of a systems approach to physical activity. More 

research and community engagement is needed to understand how to break down 

social and cultural barriers to participation and local programmes need to use this 

intelligence to achieve a better, more equitable, participation. 

 
Physical activities as medicine  

17. Public Health will promote the opportunity for health professionals to   prescribe 

physical activities such as guided walking, gardening or light conservation work which 

are viable alternatives to attending a gym or prescribing unnecessary medicines. 

 

115



 

 
 

18. By pursuing coordinated action across the seven components detailed above it is 

envisaged activity levels in Leicestershire will increase to, and remain, above that of 

the national average within three years.  Learning from areas of best practice, such as 

Greater Manchester where activity levels are now above the national average, will also 

help inform the whole systems approach. 

 
Resource Implications 
 
19. Full implementation of the recommendations of the report will need to be addressed 
through the commissioning and budget setting cycle. 
 
Timetable for Decisions 
 
20. The Annual Report was considered by the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

the 13th November and by the Cabinet on the 22nd November.  It will be considered by 
the County Council at its meeting on the 4th December. 

 
Conclusion 
 
21. The report presents recommendations and priorities for action on physical activity over 

the next twelve months.  Health and Wellbeing Board partners are asked to comment 
on the recommendation as part of developing a response to the highlighted areas. 

 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Mike Sandys 
Director of Public Health 
Email: mike.sandys@leics.gov.uk 
Telephone: 0116 305 4239 
 
List of Appendices 
 
Annual Report of the Director of Public Health 2019. 
 

116



Leicestershire’s health –  
Physical Activity - Moving to a whole system approach

Annual Report of the  
Director of Public Health 2019

117



1. Foreword
Welcome to my annual report for 2019. In my last annual report we presented an 
infographic picture of the challenge of frailty and multi-morbidity on the health of 
the population of Leicestershire.

That initial look at the challenge of multi-morbidity has led to a more detailed piece of work in the 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).  From raising awareness of an issue, we are now moving 
to a phase where there is a real interest in understanding which groups of people with multiple 
health conditions use hospital care, and which groups within those are more amenable to preventing 
deterioration. That detailed work will be of critical importance in understanding our approach to what 
is known as ‘population health management’.  As can be seen in the ‘update on recommendations’, 
the report has led to action and progress on a number of areas such as tackling loneliness, ‘social 
prescribing’ and supporting the NHS in their redesign work. 

In this year’s report I have focussed on physical activity and, in particular, moving towards a whole 
system approach to improving levels of physical activity.

I would like to thank Liz Orton from the Public Health Department for her help in compiling the report 
and Kajal Lad from the Strategic Business Intelligence Team for her tremendous work in constructing 
the infographics and narrative that underpin it.

2  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Contents
1. Foreword 2

2. Introduction  3

3. Recommendations and summary  4

4. Why is physical inactivity a problem? 5

5. Leicestershire’s Physical Activity Profile 6

6. What are the benefits of leading an  
active lifestyle? 7

7. Current physical activity recommendations  8

8. How do we create a system that enables  
people to be more physically active? 9

9. Active communities, cultural  
and social norms 10

10. Active environment 12

11. Active travel 14

12. Active early years and schools 17

13. Active people and families 21

14. Active workplaces and workforces 24

15. Physical activity as medicine 26

16. Feedback on recommendations for 2018 28

17. References 31

118



2. Introduction 
Directors of Public Health have a statutory duty to write an Annual Public Health 
Report that describes the state of health within their communities.

It is a major opportunity for advocacy on behalf of the population and, as such, can be used to help talk 
to the community and support fellow professionals, providing added value over and above intelligence and 
information routinely available such as that contained within health profi les or the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA).

It is intended to inform local strategies, policy and practice across a range of organisations and interests and 
to highlight opportunities to improve the health and wellbeing of people in Leicestershire. The annual report 
is an important vehicle by which Directors of Public Health can identify key issues, fl ag up problems, report 
progress and thereby serve their local populations. It is also a key resource to inform stakeholders about 
priorities and recommend actions to improve and protect the health of the communities they serve.

Within this report, data is presented around a whole system approach to physical activity in Leicestershire. 
The content should be used by commissioners and providers of services to respond to changes in the health 
of Leicestershire residents.

3  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

119



Active environment

Active travel

Active early years and schools

Active people and families

Active workplaces and workforces

Active communities

Physical activity as medicine

Although all seven need to be considered together by policy makers and stakeholders, 
the Public Health Department will prioritise three in particular.   It is vitally important 
that we build physical activity back into the environment, re-engineer physical activity 
back into our lives, to make physical activity an easier choice for travel and leisure and 
to ensure physical activity is something that all families can achieve.  The three we will 
prioritise are:

• We need to work towards a future where active design principles are embedded in 
planning policy and are central to planning decisions across Leicestershire.  This would 
be facilitated by the development of healthy planning design guidance being adopted 
by all district local authorities.  Further work is also needed to promote the use of our 
green assets for physical activity purposes.

• In future, we want to work more closely with local planning authorities to increase 
provision of active travel and high-quality walking and cycling infrastructure in new 
developments. Newly built areas should ideally prioritise cycling and walking as 
the preferred means of transport and the adoption of 20 mph limits/zones where 
appropriate.

• We need to prioritise those programmes aimed at families.  For example, Leicestershire 
County Council, working in partnership with the Home Start Charities, District 
Councils and Leicester-Shire and Rutland Sport (LRS) have been successful in 
securing funding from Sport England to help low income families become more active 
together.  The programme works directly with families to assess their physical activity 
needs, and co-produce bespoke activity plans with achievable, time related goals.  
Families receive weekly visits from volunteers who review their physical activity plans 
and help with difficulties they’ve faced, if necessary, attending activity sessions with 
families to boost their confidence and help them develop manageable routines.  The 
programme ensures that there are free and low-cost family friendly physical activities 
in the community using outdoor gyms, parks and other green spaces.  We need to 
learn from this programme to help identify and better target opportunities to promote 
affordable and flexible physical activity through culture and leisure services.

3. Recommendations and summary 

Policy makers and public sector organisations should adopt the seven components set out here as the 
basis of thinking about their approach to improving physical activity levels. In doing so the ‘magnificent 
seven’ should be underpinned by strong systems leadership, active policy and partnerships and 
research. The seven components are:

4  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

120



4. Why is physical inactivity a 
problem?
Around half of women and a third of men in England are damaging 
their health through a lack of physical activity and are not gaining 
the social, physical and mental health benefits of being active1. This 
is unsustainable and costing the UK an estimated £7.4bn a year2,3. 
If current trends continue, the increasing costs of health and social 
care will destabilise public services and take a toll on quality of life for 
individuals and communities.

Physical inactivity directly contributes to one in six deaths in the UK4, the same number 
as smoking5.  Around a quarter of us are still classified as inactive, failing to achieve a 
minimum of 30 minutes of activity a week.  Changes in social, cultural and economic 
trends have contributed to people participating in less physical activity, such as, fewer 
manual jobs, technology at home and work which encourages sedentary behaviours 
and over-reliance on cars and other motorised transport6.

The extent of the problem

Source: Public Health England, Everybody active, every day (2014)

Everybody active, every day

5

64% of trips are made by car 22% are made on foot
2% are made by bike

19% of men and 
26% of women are 

'physically 
inactive'

33% of men are not 
active enough for 

good health

21% of boys and 16%  
of girls aged 5-15 achieve 

recommended levels  
of physical activity

47% of boys and 49%  
of girls in the lowest 
economic group are 

'inactive' compared to  
26% and 35% in the highest

Walking trips 
decreased by 30% 

between 1995  
and 2013

45% of women are 
not active enough for 

good health

23% of girls  
aged 5-7 meet the 

recommended levels 
of daily physical 
activity, by ages 
13-15 only 8% do

 18% of disabled 
adults regularly take 

part in sport 
compared to 39% 
of non-disabled 

adults

The extent of the problem

Data sources: Health Survey for England 2012 (HSE); Active People Survey 8, April 2013-April 2014 (APS); National Travel Survey 2013 (NTS) 

We want to engage with professionals, providers and commissioners 
in health, social care, transportation, planning, education, sport and 
leisure, the voluntary, community and cultural sectors as well as public 
and private employers to make the case for more – much more – physical 
activity, every day.

5  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

121



5. Leicestershire’s Physical Activity Profile
Group Indicator Name Time Period Value

Key 
Indicators

Percentage of physically active adults 2017/18 64.3%

Percentage of physically inactive adults 2017/18 23.3%

Percentage of adults walking for travel at least three days per week 2016/17 16.9%

Percentage of adults cycling for travel at least three days per week 2016/17 2.6%

Percentage physically active for at least one hour per day seven days a week at age 15 2014/15 14.9%

Percentage with a mean daily active sedentary time in the last week over 7 hours per day at age 15 2014/15 68.8%

Percentage of adults who do any walking, at least 5 times per week 2014/15 51.2%

Percentage of adults who do any walking, at least once per week 2014/15 82.1%

Percentage of adults who do any cycling, at least three times per week 2014/15 4.4%

Percentage of adults who do any cycling, at least once per month 2014/15 15.6%

Access to woodland 2015 6.9%

Utilisation of outdoor space for exercise/health reasons Mar 2015-Feb 2016 20.8%

Related 
conditions

Percentage of adults (aged 18+) classified as overweight or obese 2017/18 60.6%

Reception: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity) 2016/17 20.3%

Year 6: Prevalence of overweight (including obesity) 2016/17 29.6%

Estimated diabetes diagnosis rate 2018 79.4%

Under 75 Mortality rate from colorectal cancer 2015-17 11.6 per 100,000

Under 75 Mortality rate from breast cancer 2015-17 18.9 per 100,000

Hypertension: QOF (Quality Outcomes Framework) prevalence (all ages) 2017/18 15.0%

Coronary Heart Disease (CHD): QOF (Quality Outcomes Framework) prevalence (all ages) 2017/18 3.0%

Stroke: QOF (Quality Outcomes Framework) prevalence (all ages) 2017/18 1.8%

Depression: Recorded prevalence (aged 18+) 2017/18 11.5%

The percentage of physically active adults 
is SIGNIFICANTLY WORSE than the 
national average.

The percentage of physically inactive: 
adults is SIMILAR to the national average.

The percentage of adults walking 
for travel at least 3 days per week is 
SIGNIFICANTLY WORSE than the 
national average.

The percentage of adults cycling for travel 
at least 3 days per week is SIMILAR to 
the national average.

The percentage of people utilising outdoor 
space for exercise/health reasons is 
SIMILAR to the national average 

Excess weight in adults is SIMILAR to the 
national average

Excess weight in children aged 4-5 and 
10-11 is SIGNIFICANTLY BETTER than 
the national average.

Under 75 mortality rate from colorectal 
cancer is SIMILAR to the national 
average.

Under 75 mortality rate from breast 
cancer is SIMILAR to the national 
average.

Source: Public Health Physical Activity Profile, Public Health England 
Produced by Srategic Business Intelligence Team, Leicestershire County Council, 2019.

 Significantly better than England   Similar to England   Significantly worse than England   Not compared   Higher than England   Lower than England

6  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

122



6. What are the benefi ts of leading an active lifestyle?
There are many benefi ts to leading an active lifestyle across the life course. From birth right through to later years there 
are physical and mental health benefi ts from regularly incorporating physical activity into daily life. 

Ta ble 1: Overview of the benefi ts physical activity can bring at different life stages

Babies and children 
(birth – 5 years)

Children and young people 
(5 – 18 years)

Physical activity benefi ts for adults 
and older adults (18 years +)

■ Builds relationships & social skills.
■ Maintains healthy weight.
■ Contributes to brain development & 

learning.
■ Improves sleep.
■ Develops muscles & bones.
■ Encourages movement & co-ordination.

■ Builds confi dence & social skills.
■ Develops co-ordination.
■ Improves concentration & learning.
■ Strengthens muscles & bones.
■ Improves health & fi tness.
■ Maintains healthy weight.
■ Improves sleep.
■ Makes you feel good.

■ Benefi ts health by reducing your chance of:
- Type II diabetes by 40%.
- Cardiovascular disease by 35%.
- Falls, depression and dementia by 30%.
- Joint and back pain by 25%.
- Cancers (colon and breast) by 20%.

■ Improves sleep.
■ Maintains healthy weight.
■ Manages stress.
■ Improves quality of life.

Source: Department of Health and Social Care (2016)7  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

123



7. Current physical activity recommendations 
The Chief Medical Officers (CMO) have set out the amount and type of physical activity we should all aim to do at each stage of our 
lives. These guidelines draw on global evidence for the health benefits that can be achieved by taking part in regular physical activity. 

Age group CMOs physical activity guidelines

Early years 
(0-5 years)

Infants (less than 1 year): Infants should be physically active several times every day in a variety of ways, including interactive 
floor-based activity, e.g. crawling.
 
For infants not yet mobile, this includes at least 30 minutes of tummy time spread throughout the day while awake (and other 
movements such as reaching and grasping, pushing and pulling themselves independently, or rolling over); more is better.

NB: Tummy time may be unfamiliar to babies at first, but can be increased gradually, starting from a minute or two at a time, as 
the baby becomes used to it. Babies should not sleep on their tummies.

Toddlers (1-2 years): Toddlers should spend at least 180 minutes (3 hours) per day in a variety of physical activities at any 
intensity, including active and outdoor play, spread throughout the day, more is better.

Pre-schoolers (3-4 years): Pre-schoolers should spend at least 180 minutes (3 hours) per day in a variety of physical activities 
spread throughout the day, including active and outdoor play. More is better; the 180 minutes should include at least 60 minutes 
of moderate-to-vigorous intensity physical activity.

Children 
and young 
people (5-
18 years) 

Children and young people should engage in moderate-to-vigorous intensity physical activity for an average of at least 60 minutes 
per day across the week. This can include all forms of activity such as physical education, active travel, after-school activities, play 
and sports.

Children and young people should engage in a variety of types and intensities of physical activity across the week to develop 
movement skills, muscular fitness, and bone strength.

Children and young people should aim to minimise the amount of time spent being sedentary, and when physically possible 
should break up long periods of not moving with at least light physical activity.

Adults  
(19-64 
years)

For good physical and mental health, adults should aim to be physically active every day. Any activity is better than none, and 
more is better still.

Adults should do activities to develop or maintain strength in the major muscle groups. These could include heavy gardening, 
carrying heavy shopping, or resistance exercise. Muscle strengthening activities should be done on at least two days a week, but 
any strengthening activity is better than none.

Each week, adults should accumulate at least 150 minutes (2 1/2 hours) of moderate intensity activity (such as brisk walking or 
cycling); or 75 minutes of vigorous intensity activity (such as running); or even shorter durations of very vigorous intensity activity 
(such as sprinting or stair climbing); or a combination of moderate, vigorous and very vigorous intensity activity.

Adults should aim to minimise the amount of time spent being sedentary, and when physically possible should break up long 
periods of inactivity with at least light physical activity.

Source: Department of Health and Social Care, UK Chief Medical Officers Physical Activity Guidelines (2019)  
*Moderate intensity physical activity leads to faster breathing, increased heart rate and feeling warmer, whereas vigorous intensity 
physical activity leads to very hard breathing, shortness of breath and a rapid heart rate.

8  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Physical activity for adults 
and older adults

BUILD STRENGTH

IMPROVE BALANCE

MINIMISE
SEDENTARY TIME

to keep muscles, bones and joints strong!

to reduce the chance of fraility and falls!

GYM

DANCE

TAI CHI

BOWLS

CARRY 
BAGS

YOGA

A WEEK
2 DAYS

124



8. How do we create a system that enables 
people to be more physically active?

Physical inactivity and excess weight are driven by complex environmental, societal and individual 
factors. A growing body of evidence suggests that a ‘whole system approach’ is the most effective 
way to address these multiple factors and is the subject of current research by Public Health 
England (PHE) and Leeds Beckett University. From this research, PHE have recently produced a 
guide for Local Authorities to develop their own whole system strategy.

This approach accepts that there is no one solution to tackle such an ingrained problem 
and that local action to promote healthy weight across the life course requires a 
coordinated collaborative approach across many different organisations to align priorities 
and work more closely together. 

The figure below shows seven components forming Leicestershire’s whole system 
approach to increase physical activity, where the central focus is the community.  These 
are underpinned by strong systems leadership, active policy and partnerships and 
research.

For physical activity levels to rise, I am calling for organisations and policy makers to adopt 
these seven principles as the cornerstone of their approach.  Addressing the environment, 
active travel, getting people and families active, focusing on early years and physical 
activity within schools, communities and the workplace we can help make being active a 
reality.  The role of physical activity as medicine within healthcare is also vitally important.  
In this report we look at data for each of the seven principles, current work and where 
things need to go next.

Many issues cut across all domains and may be the responsibility of multiple agencies. 
Leicestershire has been an early adopter of the whole system approach. This report looks 
at each domain and provides an overview of the range of local issues and programmes 
which reflect the ‘whole system’ actions being used to achieve meaningful changes in the 
population’s physical activity levels.   

Active
communities,
culture and
social norms

Active
environment

Active
travel

Active early
years and
schools

Active 
people and 

families

Active 
workplaces and

workforces

Physical
activity as
medicineSy

st
em

s l
ea

de
rsh

ip, activity policy, partnerships and research

9  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

125



White
British

Physical Inactivity in adults aged 16+ by ethnicity, 2017/18

Leicestershire

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

White
Other

South
Asian

Black Chinese Mixed Other
Ethnic
Origin

England

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

Limiting illness
or disability

No limiting
illness or
disability

1 impairment 2 impairments 3+ impairments

Physical Inactivity in adults aged 16+ by disability, 2017/18

Leicestershire

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

England

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

9. Active communities, cultural  
and social norms

Current situation

Active communities sit at the heart of a systems approach to physical activity and our 
approaches need to be sensitive to cultural and social norms within those communities.  
There are many cultural and social barriers which inhibit some BAME (Black, Asian 
and Minority Ethnic) communities from participating in physical activity, it is therefore 
important we recognise these and plan services which address these barriers wherever 
possible.

Key facts on inequalities 

• Ethnicity - In Leicestershire, variation exists in the levels of inactivity across different 
ethnic groups.  Those from a White Other ethnic group reported having the highest 
prevalence of inactivity (41.5%), followed by the South Asian group (32.3%). There is a 
large difference between the Leicestershire average for the White Other group and the 
national average (23.2%).

• Disability – Both, locally and nationally, a higher proportion of those with a limiting 
illness or disability reported inactivity compared to those with no limiting illness or 
disability.

Note: The data presented has not been tested for statistical significance; therefore, caution needs to be applied when 
interpreting the results. 

Source: Sport England – Active Lives Adult Survey, 2018

• Occupation – Nationally, those in in managerial and professional occupations are more 
likely to meet physical activity guidelines (72%) than those in routine/semi-routine 
occupations and never worked and long-term unemployed (54%)7.

• Sexual Orientation - a lower proportion of those identifying as gay or lesbian (18.6%) 
or bisexual (17.8%) classified as being inactive compared to those identifying as 
heterosexual or straight (22.2%), or other (29.5%)8.

10  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

126



Key barriers:

• BAME (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) individuals are influenced by four main barriers, perceptions, cultural 
expectations, personal barriers, and factors limiting access to facilities. 

• There is evidence that individuals from the LGBT+ community can be deterred by the use of homophobic and transphobic 
language within sport settings and the acceptance of this language as ‘banter’9. 

What are we doing?

A conscious effort is being made to make local services as inclusive as possible and where funding and capacity 
allows, provide tailored sessions for groups with particular needs. An example is DHAL, a weight loss and 
exercise programme designed for South Asian men and women in Loughborough, which provides tailored and 
culturally appropriate dietary advice and physical activities sessions.

Where do we need to get to?

We need to reduce inequalities in physical activity levels, particularly in the groups described.  To do this we 
need to undertake more comprehensive monitoring and evaluation of physical activity programmes and improve 
the engagement and participation of under-represented groups.  More research and community engagement is 
needed to understand how to break down social and cultural barriers to participation and local programmes need 
to be able to operationalise this intelligence in order to achieve more equitable reach.

11  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

127



10. Active environment
Current situation

Access to open and green space – parks, gardens, tree-lined streets, communal squares and allotments is important for 
quality of life and for the sustainability of towns and cities. People who have close access to green space live longer than 
those without it. Having the open space to exercise also alleviates stress and depression and has been shown to aid mental 
health10,11. 
  
Access to green space such as woodland, supports wellbeing and allows people to engage in physical activity. Both 
the presence of a woodland and the number of people who can readily access the space represents a significant asset 
to that community. Woodlands provide spaces for community activities, social connectedness, volunteering as well as 
employment12. 

Standards of Green Space Index Score in Leicestershire

 

12  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

in Leicestershire

Access Nationally

Green Space Index (GSI)
The green space index map shows publicly 
accessible local park and green space provision 
in areas of Leicestershire.  A GSI score above 
one indicates sufficiency in quantity of provision 
across different typologies of park and green 
space. Across Leicestershire, there is variation 
in the provision of park and green space. The 
map also shows a cluster of areas in the east of 
Leicestershire which show a greater than minimum 
level of provision of parks and green spaces. 

Access to Woodland

Utilisation of outdoor space 
for exercise/health
In Leicestershire, there has been an increase from 
2012/13 to 2014/15 in the proportion of residents 
utilising outdoor space for exercise/health reasons. 
In 2015/16 the percentage is similar to the national 
rate of 17.7%.   

Utilisation of outdoor space for exercise/health reasons in Leicestershire

0%
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

● Significantly better than England ● Similar to England

6.9% of the population in Leicestershire has access to 
woodland of at least 2 hectares within 500 meters of 
where they live compared to 16.8% nationally.

16.8%

6.9%

128



What are we doing?

There is now more joined up planning and delivery of programmes to increase the availability and use of green 
space which span many different organisations including local authorities, Sport England, Town and Country 
Planning Association and Leicester-Shire and Rutland Sport (LRS).  This is leading to practical ‘on the ground’ 
improvements which increase and encourage physical activity. Examples include work by senior officers 
to embed the principles of building ‘Active environments’ into the many new housing developments across 
Leicestershire. This is helping to increase newly built areas with additional pathways and cycle paths, which 
encourage walking and cycling to be the preferred method of transport; speed restrictions to make it safer for 
pedestrians, better public transport links to reduce dependence on the car and more green areas, including 
allotments, sport and recreational areas.

Where do we need to get to?

We need to work towards a future where active design principles are embedded in planning policy and are 
central to planning decisions across Leicestershire.  This would be facilitated by the development of healthy 
planning design guidance being adopted by all district local authorities.  Further work is also needed to promote 
the use of our green assets for physical activity purposes.

13  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

129



11. Active travel

Current situation

Choosing to walk or cycle instead of using a car or public transport is a way of incorporating physical activity 
routinely into daily lives. Modern dependence on the car, even for short journeys, has significantly reduced the 
population’s activity levels – and is something we see dramatically in the reduction of school children walking or 
cycling to school every day.

Parents report that a shortage of time, or confidence that the environment is safe for children to travel 
independently, are reasons for opting to use the car to take children to school. 

Similar difficulties apply to adults getting to work, often in locations that are hard to reach by public transport or 
far enough away that they feel they need to commute by car. 

Percentage of adults (aged 16+) walking for  
travel at least three days per week

 

AREA 2015/16 2016/17

Blaby 15.3% 15.9%

Charnwood 18.9% 17.1%

Harborough 16.6% 19.2%

Hinckley and Bosworth 13.2% 13.6%

Melton 14.1% 19.2%

North West Leicestershire 12.8% 14.8%

Oadby and Wigston 20.8% 22.6%

Leicestershire 16.1% 16.9%

England 22.7% 22.9%

Source: Public Health England (2019), Physical Activity Profile

Percentage of adults (aged 16+) cycling for  
travel at least three days per week

 

AREA 2015/16 2016/17

Blaby 1.2% 2.7%

Charnwood 4.2% 3.6%

Harborough 1.8% 3.2%

Hinckley and Bosworth 2.8% 2.0%

Melton 1.2% 0.8%

North West Leicestershire 1.9% 2.0%

Oadby and Wigston 2.4% 2.3%

Leicestershire 2.5% 2.6%

England 3.3% 3.3%

Source: Public Health England (2019), Physical Activity Profile

14  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Walking
Leicestershire has a significantly lower proportion 
of adults walking for travel at least three days per 
week in comparison to England.  This varied by 
district with four of Leicestershire’s districts (Blaby, 
Charnwood, Hinckley and Bosworth and North 
West Leicestershire) performing significantly worse 
than the national average.  Oadby and Wigston has 
the highest proportion of adults walking for travel at 
least three days per week in 2016/17.

Cycling
Leicestershire has a similar proportion of adults 
cycling for travel at least three days per week 
in comparison to England.  In 2016/17, Melton 
was the only district that has a significantly lower 
proportion of adults cycling for travel at least three 
days per week in comparison to England, all other 
districts have a similar proportion to England. 
Charnwood has the highest proportion of adults 
cycling for travel at least three days per week in 
2016/17.

Statistical significance compared to England  Lower (worse)  Similar

130



15  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

More WALKING and CYCLING also has the 
potential to achieve related policy objectives:

carbon dioxide emissions
AND CONGESTION

and promotes VIBRANT

SUPPORTS LOCAL

CAR TRAVEL

ROAD DANGER & NOISE

AIR POLLUTION

PROVIDES
APPEALING PUBLIC REALM

BUSINESSES

REDUCES

REDUCES

INCREASES

& PROVIDES
an opportunity for everyone, including 
people with impairments, to experience 
and enjoy the outdoor environment.

A HIGH-QUALITY
TOWN CENTRES

the number of people of all ages out on the 
streets, making public spaces seem more 
welcoming and providing opportunities for 
social interaction and children’s play

131



What are we doing?

With a key focus on school children, schools are encouraged through Leicestershire County Council’s ‘Choose 
How you Move’ team to adopt a ‘Whole School Approach’ to promoting Active Travel, including developing 
a School Travel Plan and through participating in ‘Mode-Shift Star’.  A new Active Travel Schools Officer has 
increased the number of children walking or cycling to school by establishing Park and Stride sites and a no-
waiting clear zone at two schools experiencing problems with school-gate congestion and safety problems. 
Educational campaigns, competitions and incentives have been introduced to increase levels of active travel by 
pupils. 

There is also lots of workplace activity to reduce car-based commuting. Support and grants up to £5,000 are 
available to small businesses to overcome barriers to active travel. Examples of grant funding last year included a 
bike repair station, showers and bike parking, EV charging points, and walking clothing.

Leicestershire County Council has a pool of four electric bikes for staff use on duty, which are popular for 
meetings and site visits.  They also have a fleet of ten electric bikes that are given to businesses for a six-week 
period for their staff to use for commuting and leisure.  Bikes, locks, coats, panniers and training, along with 
personalised route support are provided and so far, over 35% of users have continued to commute by bike or 
electric bike once the pilot scheme ended. 

Where do we need to get to?

In future, we want to work more closely with local planning authorities to increase provision of 
active travel and high-quality walking infrastructure in new developments. Newly built areas 
should ideally prioritise cycling and walking as the preferred means of transport and the adoption 
of 20 mph limits/zones created where appropriate. 

20

16  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

132



12. Active early years and schools
Current situation

Children and young people’s participation in physical activity is important for their healthy growth and development. It can reduce the risk of chronic conditions (for example, obesity) 
and improve their general health and wellbeing. The best way to encourage children and young people to be physically active may differ according to their age, developmental stage, 
culture and gender. For example, improving their physical skills and general ability to participate may make physical activity more enjoyable. It may also help increase their activity levels 
throughout childhood and into adulthood13.

Physical Activity Levels in children and young people aged 5-16 in Leicestershire – 2017/18

Nationally, 17.5% of children aged 5 to 16 were active. In Leicestershire, 18.1% of children were 
active, this is similar to the national average. Oadby and Wigston had the highest percentage of 
children who met the recommendation (26.2%) and was the only district with a signifi cantly higher 
proportion of children meeting the recommendation compared to the national average. All other 
districts had similar proportions to the national average, with North West Leicestershire (15.1%) having 
the lowest proportion.

Nationally, just under one third (32.9%) of children aged 5 to 16 were ‘less active’ (did less than 30 
minutes of physical activity a day). In Leicestershire, 30.8% of children were ‘less active’, this is similar 
to the national average.  Melton (38.5%) had the highest proportion of ‘less active’ children and Blaby 
(27.0%) had the lowest proportion. All districts have a similar prevalence of less active children aged 5 to 
16 compared the national average. 

Source: Sport England – Active Lives Children and Young People Survey (2018) Produced by the Strategic Business Intelligence Team, Leicestershire County Council, 2019

Physical Activity - Active (60+ minutes of activity, every day of the week) Physical Activity – Less Active (less than an average of 30 minutes a day)

17  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Area

Oadby and Wigston

Hinckley and Bosworth

Charnwood

Blaby

Leicestershire

Harborough

England

Melton

North West Leicestershire 15.1%

15.4%

18.0%

18.1%

18.2%

18.8%

20.4%

26.2%

17.5%

1

Active for 150 minutes or more, a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Higher/Better
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

Area

Blaby

Harborough

Oadby and Wigston

Hinckley and Bosworth

Leicestershire

North West Leicestershire

Charnwood

England

Melton 38.5%

32.0%

31.0%

30.8%

29.7%

29.1%

27.3%

27.0%

32.9%

.

Active for less than 30 minutes a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

133



Nationally, 27.7% of children in school years 1 to 11 were active in school. In Leicestershire, 29.4% of 
children in school years 1 to 11 were active in school, this is similar to the national average. Charnwood 
(41.1%) and Hinckley and Bosworth (40.7%) had a signifi cantly higher proportion of children who were 
active in school compared to the national average, whilst North West Leicestershire (22.5%) had a 
signifi cantly lower proportion of children that were active in school.  

Source: Sport England – Active Lives Children and Young People Survey (2018)

Nationally, 60.5% of children in school years 1 to 11 were less active in school. In Leicestershire, 
58% of children in school years 1 to 11 were less active in school, this is similar to the national 
average. Charnwood (50.2%), Oadby and Wigston (50.4%) and Hinckley and Bosworth (50.9%) had a 
signifi cantly lower (better) proportion of children who were less active in school compared to the national 
average.

Produced by the Strategic Business Intelligence Team, Leicestershire County Council, 2019

Physical Activity Levels at school* for children in school years 1 to 11 in Leicestershire – 2017/18

Physical Activity - Active (30+ minutes of activity, every day) Physical Activity – Less Active (less than an average of 30 minutes of activity a day)

Area

Charnwood

Hinckley and Bosworth

Oadby and Wigston

Leicestershire

Harborough

England

Melton

Blaby

North West Leicestershire

23.9%

24.2%

28.1%

29.4%

31.7%

22.5%

40.7%

41.1%

27.7%

4

%

Active for 150 minutes or more, a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Higher/Better
Lower/Worse
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

Area

Charnwood

Oadby and Wigston

Hinckley and Bosworth

Leicestershire

Harborough

England

North West Leicestershire

Blaby

Melton 65.2%

62.6%

62.1%

58.3%

58.0%

50.9%

50.4%

50.2%

60.5%

0

%

Active for less than 30 minutes a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Lower/Better
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

* ‘At school’ refers to activity done while at school, during normal school hours. It includes activities in PE lessons and break times but excludes activities at before and after school clubs, even if these take place at school.

18  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

134



** ‘outside school’ refers to activity done outside of school hours. It includes anything done before getting to school and after leaving school (including travel to/from), as well as activity done at the 
weekend, on holiday days and before and after school clubs, even if these took place at school.

Nationally, 21.5% of children in school years 1 to 11 were active outside of school. In Leicestershire, 
22% of children in school years 1 to 11 were active outside of school, this is similar to the national 
average . Oadby and Wigston (29.6%) was the only district to have a signifi cantly higher percentage of 
children being active outside of school compared to the national average.

Source: Sport England – Active Lives Children and Young People Survey (2017/18)

Nationally, 47.4% of children in school years 1 to 11 were less active outside of school. In Leicestershire, 
45.5% of children in school years 1 to 11 were less active outside of school, this is similar to the national 
average. Harborough (36.1%) was the only district to have a signifi cantly lower (better) percentage of 
children being less active outside of school compared to the national average.

Source: Sport England - Active Lives Children and Young People Survey (2017/18)
Produced by Srategic Business Intelligence Team, Leicestershire County Council, 2019.

Physical Activity Levels outside** school for children in school years 1 to 11 in Leicestershire – 2017/18

Physical Activity - Active (30+ minutes of activity, every day) Physical Activity – Less Active (less than an average of 30 minutes of activity a day)

Area

Oadby and Wigston

Hinckley and Bosworth

Harborough

Charnwood

Blaby

Leicestershire

England

Melton

North West Leicestershire 18.7%

21.2%

22.0%

22.1%

22.1%

23.1%

23.4%

29.6%

21.5%%

Active for 150 minutes or more, a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Higher/Better
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

Area

Harborough

Oadby and Wigston

Blaby

Leicestershire

Hinckley and Bosworth

North West Leicestershire

England

Charnwood

Melton 54.4%

47.8%

47.1%

46.1%

45.5%

42.5%

37.7%

36.1%

47.4%

5

4

Active for less than 30 minutes a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Lower/Better
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

19  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

135



What are we doing?

In September 2020 all schools will have to deliver statutory Health Education (including teaching about healthy eating and physical 
activity) following the DfE statutory Guidance issued in June 2019. 

In Leicestershire, a broad range of programmes are already offered to keep pre-school and primary school children as active as possible. 
Public Health’s Healthy Tots (www.leicestershirehealthytots.org.uk) and Healthy Schools  
(www.leicestershirehealthyschools.org.uk) programmes provide comprehensive resources and training for schools and early years 
settings to help deliver ‘purposeful play’ and high quality PE lessons.

Public Health have also developed, in collaboration with LRS and the Seven School Sports and Physical Activity Network (SSPAN), a 
‘Whole School Approach to Physical Activity’ (WSAPA), which is available for all schools through SSPAN, it includes a focus on:

• Increasing schools’ engagement in active travel initiatives

• Delivering Fundamental movement skills programmes

• Developing new inactivity programmes

• Introducing the “Daily boost” (daily mile) programme into Primary schools

Where do we need to get to?

There remain gaps in the provision of comprehensive physical activity programmes across the 0-16 age group. In 
particular, evidence shows the number of pre-school children that are physically under-developed and overweight is 
increasing year on year, and more pupils are reaching reception year, not physically and emotionally ‘school ready’.

This can be best addressed through additional work in pre-school settings and with parents generally, to promote 
‘active play’ and by encouraging the uptake of the Whole School Approach to Physical Activity’ (WSAPA) programme 
across all Leicestershire Schools.

The WSAPA approach encourages schools to plan and deliver physical 
activity interventions in each of the following seven themes (or principles):

• develop and deliver multi-component interventions

• ensure skilled workforce

• engage student voice

• create active environments

• offer choice and variety 

• embed in curriculum, teaching and learning

• embed monitoring and evaluation 

20  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

136



13. Active people and families

Current situation
Physical inactivity is the 4th leading risk factor for global mortality accounting for 6% of deaths globally. People who have a physically active lifestyle have a 20-35% 
lower risk of cardiovascular disease, coronary heart disease and stroke compared to those who have a sedentary lifestyle.  Regular physical activity is also associated with 
a reduced risk of diabetes, obesity, osteoporosis and colon/breast cancer and with improved mental health.  In older adults physical activity is associated with increased 
functional capacities. The estimated direct cost of physical inactivity to the NHS across the UK is over £0.9 billion per year15.

Nationally, 63.2% of adults aged 16 and over were active. In Leicestershire, 63% of adults aged 16 and 
over were active, this is similar to the national average. All districts had a statistically similar prevalence 
of active adults aged 16 and over in comparison to England. Out of all the districts, Melton (66.4%) had 
the highest proportion of active adults aged 16 and over and Oadby and Wigston (59.2%) had the lowest 
proportion of active adults.

Nationally, 24.8% of adults aged 16 and over were less active. In Leicestershire, 23.9% of adults aged 
16 and over were less active, this is similar to the national average. All districts have a similar prevalence 
of less active adults aged 16 and over in comparison to England. Oadby and Wigston (29.7%) had 
the highest proportion of les active adults aged 16 and over, whilst Melton (20.8%) had the lowest 
proportion.

Physical Activity - Active (150+ minutes of activity a week) Physical Activity – less active (less than 30 minutes of activity a week)

Physical Activity Levels in adults aged 16+ in Leicestershire – November 2018/19

Area

Melton

Harborough

Blaby

England

Charnwood

Leicestershire

North West Leicestershire

Hinckley and Bosworth

Oadby and Wigston 59.2%

61.5%

61.6%

63.0%

63.1%

64.5%

64.7%

66.4%

63.2%

6

6

6

0

6

1

Active for 150 minutes or more, a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

21  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Area

Melton

Blaby

Harborough

Charnwood

Leicestershire

England

Hinckley and Bosworth

North West Leicestershire

Oadby and Wigston 29.7%

25.1%

25.0%

23.9%

22.9%

22.7%

22.4%

20.8%

24.8%

3

Active for less than 30 minutes a week

Statistical Significance compared to England
Benchmark
Similar

Grey indicates 95% confidence intervals

137



Less Active Levels in adults aged 16+ in Leicestershire by age group – May 2018/19

Source: Sport England – Active Lives Adult Survey (2019)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

19.
9%

17.9
%

22
.8%

21.
3%

26
.5%

27.
5%

53
.9%

51.
7%

Age 16-34

Leicestershire

Age 35-54 Age 55-74 Age 75+

Age 16-34 Age 35-54 Age 55-74 Age 75+

England

Leicestershire England

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%
18.
6%

18.
2%

16.
4%

21.
1%

26
.7%

26
.9%

46
.0%

49
.5%

Less active Adults by age

22  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

A607

A47

A50

A6

A6

21.7% MALES LESS ACTIVE 
IN LEICESTERSHIRE

23.9%
ADULTS

25.6% FEMALES LESS ACTIVE 
IN LEICESTERSHIRE

ACROSS LEICESTERSHIRE A
HIGHER PROPORTION

WERE LESS ACTIVE
COMPARED WITH

OF FEMALES

MALES 

Nationally the percentage of less active adults increases 
as age increases, in Leicestershire, the percentage of less 
active adults increases from age 35 and over.

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY – LESS ACTIVE 
(less than 30 minutes of activity a week) by age

AGED 16+

ARE LESS
ACTIVE

IN LEICESTERSHIRE 138



What are we doing?
Leicestershire’s district and borough councils all provide a comprehensive programme of events and 
campaigns throughout the year to increase physical activity, aimed at all ages and abilities and at 
addressing barriers to participation.  This is partly funded by the Public Health Department.   

Programmes include those aimed at families.  For example, Leicestershire County Council, working in 
partnership with the Home Start Charities, district / borough councils and LRS have been successful 
in securing funding from Sport England to help low income families become more active together.  The 
programme works directly with families to assess their physical activity needs, and co-produce bespoke 
activity plans with achievable, time related goals.  Families receive weekly visits from volunteers who 
review their physical activity plans and help with difficulties they’ve faced, if necessary, attending 
activity sessions with families to boost their confidence and help them develop manageable routines.  
The programme ensures that there are free and low-cost family physical activities in the community 
using outdoor gyms, parks and other green spaces.

Where do we need to get to?
Lessons learnt from the above programme will help Identify and better target 
opportunities to promote affordable and flexible physical activity through culture  
and leisure services.

23  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

139



14. Active workplaces and workforces
Current situation
Life has become increasingly sedentary, with many people being employed in sedentary occupations. Being physically inactive at work has increased in recent decades. 
Long periods of sitting may increase the risk of obesity, heart disease, and premature death16. Estimates show a 5% increase in the risk of obesity and 7% increase in the 
risk of diabetes associated with every two-hour per day increase in sitting time at work17. It has also been estimated that those who sit for eight to 11 hours per day are at a 
15% increased risk of death in the next three years than those who sit for less than four hours per day, whilst the risk increases to 40% for those who sit for more than 11 
hours per day18.  

24  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

30.8 MILLION
Due to MUSCULOSKELETAL 
CONDITIONS in England in 2016

WORKING DAYS LOST WORKING DAYS LOST
15.8 MILLION
Due to MENTAL HEALTH 
ISSUES in England in 2016

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
PROGRAMMES AT WORK

20%
27%
FEWER
SICK DAYS

REDUCE
ABSENTEEISM

by up to

taken by physically 
active workers

140



What are we doing?
Leicestershire County Council’s Public Health Department and six local authorities have funded 
LRS to develop a ‘Wellbeing @ Work’ package which organisations across LLR can access free of 
charge, to support the implementation of workplace health initiatives. One of the major programmes 
is the Workplace Health Needs Assessment which provides practical advice on Workplace Health 
and standardised survey questions to identify the key priority areas for businesses to support their 
staff, including healthy eating, physical activity, smoking and alcohol awareness and sleep and stress 
management.

 
Where do we need to get to?
We will work with employers to encourage a health needs assessment of their workforce and to 
introduce interventions to reduce sedentary time at work and support people as they transition into 
retirement to continue to be active.

25  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

141



A607

A47

A50

A6

A6

15. Physical activity as medicine

admitted to hospital for a FALL in 2017/18
PHE, Public Health Outcomes Framework

60.6%
LEICESTERSHIRE RESIDENTS 7,470

4,439 EMERGENCY

4,226 DEATHS

2,455 AGED 65+

6.8% DIAGNOSED

17.2% 20.2%

ARE CLASSIFIED AS
OVERWEIGHT or
OBESE (2017/18)

AGED 18+ 

Source: PHE, Public Health 
Outcomes Framework

of those also reported 

or ANXIETY
in 2016 - 2017 
DEPRESSION

with DIABETES on 
GP registers in 2017/18

from 2013/14- 17/18 were for CORONARY 
HEART DISEASE (average of 1,500 per year)

2013/14- 17/18 were for 

from 2015-17 were from
CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE

OF ADULTS

Source: Quality Outcomes Framework, 2017/18

reported a long-term
MUSCULOSKELETAL

PROBLEM

EMERGENCY

ADMISSIONS FROM

ADMISSIONS

DURING 2017-18

Source: PHE, Productive Healthy Ageing Profile

Source: PHE, Local 
Health Profile

Source: PHE, Productive Healthy Ageing Profile

HEART ATTACKS
(average of nearly 900 per year)

(average of 2,100 per year)

26  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

Source: PHE, Local Health Profile

142



What are we doing?
Physical activity is often an essential part of recovery from long-term illness or surgery and can be used to slow-down 
physical deterioration from chronic conditions. However, it is essential that a health professional or trained advisor 
ensures that the chosen activity is both safe and suitable for that individual.

The Leicestershire Exercise Referral (ER) programme is a well-established programme for patients that are sedentary 
or inactive and have a medical condition or chronic illness which would be improved by increased physical activity. 
Patients are offered a 12 week, tailored physical activity programme, following an assessment by a BACPR (British 
Association for Cardiovascular Prevention and Rehabilitation) qualified Level 3 / 4 Instructor. Level 4 Instructors 
can support patients in higher risk categories, such as cardiac and Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (COPD) 
rehabilitation, morbid obesity, etc. In 2018-19, the programme received 4,127 referrals.

For people over 65, Leicestershire’s ‘Steady Steps’ is a community-based 24 week exercise programme that aims 
to improve strength and balance. The programme has been shown to reduce the number, cost and long-term 
complications of falls in older people (aged 65 and above).  In clinical trials, it has been shown to reduce injurious falls 
by 40% in targeted populations and pilot data from Leicestershire and Rutland shows an 18% reduction in falls. 

Where do we need to get to?
Clinical Commission Groups (CCGS) and the local authority should review opportunities to jointly commission weight 
management services, establishing a route for oversight and accountability of this. These services include tier 3 (multi-
disciplinary specialist services targeting patients at high or immediate risk as a result of obesity and obesity-related 
ill-health) specialist services and physical activity pathways for disease prevention and management (including cancer, 
cardiorespiratory, falls, obesity, back pain / musculoskeletal problems).

In addition, there are potentially many opportunities to make social prescribing of physical activities such as guided 
walking, gardening or light conservation work, viable alternatives to attending a gym or prescribing unnecessary 
medicines.

 

27  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

143



16. Feedback on recommendations for 2018

Social isolation/Loneliness
The council’s ‘tackling loneliness and social isolation’ project, alongside the government strategy for tackling loneliness, will 
provide further opportunities for the whole council to do more on loneliness.

Response
Following the successful County Council led, multi agency loneliness conference held in late 2018, the County 
Council made tackling loneliness one of its priorities.  A three year loneliness action plan has been developed 
that prioritises work with children and young people, young adults (aged 16-34), adults with a learning disability, 
dementia or who are unemployed and older people from BME groups and from the LGBT community.  Community 
Grants have invested in infrastructure such as ‘friendly benches’ to help provide a focal point for communities to 
come together and the work of public health services such as local area coordination are key in working with a wide 
variety of individuals and groups to tackle social isolation.  

Promote social prescribing in Leicestershire
I will ensure that the model for social prescribing in Leicestershire, with public health services at its heart, continues to be 
integral to the emerging integrated locality teams (ILTs).

Response
Public Health has provided support to the development of integrated locality teams, notably through the input of 
Simon Dalby, head of service for local area coordination, to the Hinkley ILT.  Through 2019, Public Health has 
worked with CCGs to ensure that social prescribing link workers in the emerging primary care networks are part of 
the Leicestershire social prescribing ‘family’. Public Health will provide a support package to those workers.  Through 
the work of the Unified Prevention Board, a sub-group of the Leicestershire Health and Well Being Board, social 
prescribing support has been provided to other initiatives such as People’s Zones, a police-led initiative.

28  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

144



Falls
We will continue to support the implementation of the falls programme, with an emphasis on evaluating the effectiveness of 
postural stability programmes.

Response
Leicestershire now has a CCG-funded postural stability instruction programme running in each of the 
district council leisure services and Public Health-funded maintenance programmes.  The programmes 
in Leicestershire have contributed performance data to a newly developed Implementation Toolkit for 
the Falls Management Exercise (FaME – PSI) programme. The toolkit was developed by researchers at 
the University of Nottingham in collaboration with Leicestershire County Council.  Further information is 
available at www.nottingham.ac.uk/research/groups/injuryresearch/projects/physical/index.aspx 

Physical activity
Working with partners in Leicester-Shire and Rutland Sport (LRS) and district councils, the public health department will 
ensure that muscle strengthening activity and physical activities of older people are reflected in sport and physical activity 
plans.

Response
All district physical activity plans in 2018/19 prioritised physical activity in older adults including the 
provision of evidence-based programmes to improve muscle strength and balance.

29  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

145



Carers
Within public health, I will ensure we play our part in the implementation of the Carer’s strategy, ensuring that public health 
information services provide good advice to carers.

Response
Detailed action plans have been developed for the priorities in the carers strategy. Priority 3 concerns 
the provision of information to carers so that they can seek the best support form health and social care 
colleagues, as well as broader isusses such as welfare advice.  The First Contact Plus service, provided by 
public health, is a core part of that information and advice support.

Support the health system to treat the person, not the individual conditions
Through the specialist support provided by public health consultants to CCGs and the broader health system, public health 
can play its part in redesigning pathways to take account of frailty and multi-morbidity.

Response
A detailed chapter on multi-morbidity and frailty has been published as part of the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA).  This chapter, and ongoing work through the prevention workstream of the NHS 
Sustainability and Transformation Partnership (STP) and the population health management working group, are 
considering which cohorts of people  with multiple conditions would be more amenable to preventative action.  
Public Health continues to support the work of a number of groups, such as the Integrated Community Board 
(ICB) and the Primary Care Board (PCB) in providing a public health and population perspectives to redesign 
work within health.

30  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

146



17. References

1Health and Social Care Information Centre (2013) Health Survey for England 2012. Volume 1: Chapter 2 – Physical activity in adults. Leeds: Health and Social Care Information Centre.

2Scarborough P, Bhatnagar P, Wickramasinghe KK, Allender S, Foster C, Rayner M (2011) The economic burden of ill health due to diet, physical inactivity, smoking, alcohol and obesity 
in the UK: an update to 2006–07 NHS costs. Journal of Public Health 33 (4): 527-535.

3Ossa D and Hutton J (2002) The economic burden of physical inactivity in England. London: MEDTAP International

4Lee I-M, et al. (2012) Effect of physical inactivity on major non-communicable diseases worldwide: an analysis of burden of disease and life expectancy. The Lancet 380: 219–29

5Health & Social Care Information centre (2014) Statistics on Smoking, England - 2014. Leeds: Health and Social Care Information Centre.

6Public Health England (2014).  Everybody active, every day. Available at:  
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/374914/Framework_13.pdf

7Sport England (2019). Active Lives Adults Survey, November 17/18 report. Available at: www.sportengland.org/media/13898/active-lives-adult-november-17-18-report.pdf

8Sport England (2018) Active Lives Online Tool. May 2017/18. Available at: https://activelives.sportengland.org/

9Pride Sports and Sport England (2016) Sport, Physical Activity & LGBT. Available at:  
www.sportengland.org/media/11116/pride-sport-sport-physical-activity-and-lgbt-report-2016.pdf

10Van den Berg, A.E., Hartig, T. and Staats, H. (2007) ‘Preference for nature in urbanised societies: Stress, restoration and the pursuit of sustainability’, Journal of Social Issues, (63), 
79–96. Cited by: Public Health England (2014) Everybody active, every day: What works – the evidence. Available at: https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/
system/uploads/attachment_data/file/366113/Evidence_layout_23_Oct.pdf

11Chiesura, A. (2004) ‘The role of urban parks for the sustainable city’, Landscape and Urban Planning, (68), 129–138.

12Ward –Thompson C., Aspinall, P., Bell, S., Findlay, C., Wherrett,J. and Travlou, P., 2004. Open Space and Social Inclusion. UK:Forestry Commission

www.woodlandtrust.org.uk/publications/2013/10/healthy-woods-healthy-lives.

www.gov.uk/government/organisations/natural-england

13National Institute for Healthcare and Excellence (2009). Physical activity for children and young people. Available at:  
www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph17/chapter/2-Public-health-need-and-practice

14British Heart Foundation (2017) Physical Inactivity and Sedentary Behaviour Report. Available at:  
www.bhf.org.uk/informationsupport/publications/statistics/physical-inactivity-report-2017 

31  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

147



15 Department of Health, 2011. Start Active, Stay Active: A report on physical activity for health from the four home countries Available at:  
www.sportengland.org/media/2928/dh_128210.pdf

16 Shrestha  N, Kukkonen-Harjula  KT, Verbeek  JH, Ijaz  S, Hermans  V, Pedisic  Z. Workplace interventions for reducing sitting at work. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews 
2018, Issue 12. Art. No.: CD010912. DOI: 10.1002/14651858.CD010912.pub5.

17 Hu FB, Li TY, Colditz GA, Willett WC, Manson JE, (2003) Television watching and other sedentary behaviours in relation to risk of obesity and type 2 diabetes mellitus in women. 
JAMA 2003;289(14):1785-91.

18 Ploeg HP, Chey T, Korda RJ, Banks E, Bauman A, (2012) Sitting time and all-cause mortality risk in 222 497 Australian adults. Archives of Internal Medicine 2012;172(6):494-500.

32  Annual Report of the Leicestershire Director of Public Health 2019

148


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 26 September 2019 and Action Log.
	November2019HWBBActionLog

	5 Primary Care Network Development in Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland.
	6 Integrated Neighbourhood Teams
	7 Social Prescribing Link Workers and Care - Coordination Funding Update.
	8 Workforce Workstream for the Sustainability and Transformation Plans - Challenges at a System Level.
	Appendix - Plans-On-A-Page

	9 Adverse Childhood Experiences.
	10 Update on the Work of the Leicestershire Housing Services Partnership.
	11 The Violence Reduction Network and Prevention Board.
	12 Unified Prevention Board Update
	13 Leicestershire Children and Families Partnership Plan 2018 - 2021: Progress Update.
	R0700 Children and Family Plan on a page

	14 Annual Report of the Director of Public Health: Leicestershire's Health - Physical Activity - Moving to a Whole System  Approach.
	Appendix - Physical Activity - Moving to a Whole System Approach


